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I.	SCHOOL	INFORMATION	AND	COVER	PAGE	(To	be	Completed	By	All	Charter
Schools)
Created:	07/27/2015

Last	updated:	07/30/2015

Please	be	advised	that	you	will	need	to	complete	this	task	first	(including	signatures)	before	all	of	the	other	tasks	assigned	to	you	by	your
authorizer	are	visible	on	your	task	page.	While	completing	this	task,	please	ensure	that	you	select	the	correct	authorizer	or	you	may	not	be
assigned	the	correct	tasks.
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1.	SCHOOL	NAME	AND	AUTHORIZER

(Select	name	from	the	drop	down	menu)

VOICE	CS	OF	NEW	YORK	(NYC	CHANCELLOR)	343000860932

2.	CHARTER	AUTHORIZER

(For	technical	reasons,	please	re-select	authorizer	name	from	the	drop	down	menu).

NYCDOE-Authorized	Charter	School

3.	DISTRICT	/	CSD	OF	LOCATION

NYC	CSD	30

4.	SCHOOL	INFORMATION

PRIMARY	ADDRESS PHONE	NUMBER FAX	NUMBER EMAIL	ADDRESS

36-24	12th	St
Long	Island	City,	NY
11106

718-361-1694 646-537-1703

4a.	PHONE	CONTACT	NUMBER	FOR	AFTER	HOURS	EMERGENCIES

Contact	Name Patrick	Ford

Title Compliance	Manager

Emergency	Phone	Number	(###-###-####)

5.	SCHOOL	WEB	ADDRESS	(URL)

www.voicecharterschool.org

6.	DATE	OF	INITIAL	CHARTER
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2008-01-01	00:00:00

7.	DATE	FIRST	OPENED	FOR	INSTRUCTION

2008-08-01	00:00:00

8.	FINAL	VERIFIED	BEDS	ENROLLMENT	FOR	THE	2014-15	School	Year	as	reported	to	Department's	Office	of

Information	and	Reporting	Services	(via	the	NYC	DOE	for	charter	schools	in	NYC)	in	August.

593

9.	GRADES	SERVED	IN	SCHOOL	YEAR	2014-15

Check	all	that	apply

Grades	Served K,	1,	2,	3,	4,	5,	6,	7

10.	DOES	THE	SCHOOL	CONTRACT	WITH	A	CHARTER	OR	EDUCATIONAL	MANAGEMENT	ORGANIZATION?

	

Yes/No Name	of	CMO/EMO

No
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11.	FACILITIES

Will	the	School	maintain	or	operate	multiple	sites?

Yes,	2	sites

12.	SCHOOL	SITES

Please	list	the	sites	where	the	school	will	operate	in	2015-16.

Physical	Address Phone	Number District/CSD Grades	Served	at
Site

School	at	Full
Capacity	at	Site

Facilities
Agreement

Site	1	(same	as
primary	site)

36-24	12th	Street
Long	Island	City,
NY
11106

718-361-1694 CSD	30 2,4-8 Yes Rent/Lease

Site	2

37-15	13th	Street
Long	Island	City,
NY
11101

718-786-6213 CSD	30 K,1,	3 Yes DOE	space

Site	3

12a.	Please	provide	the	contact	information	for	Site	1	(same	as	the	primary	site).
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Name Work	Phone Alternate	Phone Email	Address

School	Leader Franklin	Headley

Operational	Leader Patrick	Ford

Compliance	Contact Patrick	Ford

Complaint	Contact Patrick	Ford

12b.	Please	provide	the	contact	information	for	Site	2.

Name Work	Phone Alternate	Phone Email	Address

School	Leader Franklin	Headley

Operational	Leader Patrick	Ford

Compliance	Contact Patrick	Ford

Complaint	Contact Patrick	Ford

13.	Are	the	School	sites	co-located?

Yes

13a.	Please	list	the	terms	of	your	current	co-location.

Date	School	will
leave	current	co-
location

Is	school	working
with	NYCDOE	to
expand	into
current	space?

If	so,	list	year
expansion	will
occur.

Is	school	working
with	NYCDOE	to
move	to	separate
space?

If	so,	list	the
proposed	space
and	year	planned
for	move

School	at	Full
Capacity	at	Site

Site	1	(primary
site)

Site	2
Lower	Campus,
Share	PS	111	Q	-
no	plans	to	leave

No No Yes

Site	3
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14.	Were	there	any	revisions	to	the	school’s	charter	during	the	2014-2015	school	year?	(Please	include	both	those	that

required	authorizer	approval	and	those	that	did	not	require	authorizer	approval).

No

15.	Name	and	Position	of	Individual(s)	Who	Completed	the	2014-15	Annual	Report.

Jen	Pasek,	Consultant



4	of	4

16.	Our	signatures	below	attest	that	all	of	the	information	contained	herein	is	truthful	and	accurate	and	that	this	charter

school	is	in	compliance	with	all	aspects	of	its	charter,	and	with	all	pertinent	Federal,	State,	and	local	laws,	regulations,

and	rules.	We	understand	that	if	any	information	in	any	part	of	this	report	is	found	to	have	been	deliberately

misrepresented,	that	will	constitute	grounds	for	the	revocation	of	our	charter.	Check	YES	if	you	agree	and	use	the

mouse	on	your	PC	or	the	stylist	on	your	mobile	device	to	sign	your	name).

Responses	Selected:

Yes

Signature,	Head	of	Charter	School

Signature,	President	of	the	Board	of	Trustees

Thank	you.
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Appendix	A:	Link	to	the	New	York	State	School	Report	Card
Last	updated:	07/27/2015

Page	1

Charter	School	Name:	343000860932	VOICE	CS	OF	NEW	YORK

1.	NEW	YORK	STATE	REPORT	CARD

Provide	a	direct	URL	or	web	link	to	the	most	recent	New	York	State	School	Report	Card	for	the	charter	school	(See

https://reportcards.nysed.gov/).

(Charter	schools	completing	year	one	will	not	yet	have	a	School	Report	Card	or	link	to	one.	Please	type	"URL	is	not	available"	in	the	space
provided).

http://data.nysed.gov/profile.php?instid=800000061089
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Appendix	A:	Progress	Toward	Goals
Created:	07/29/2015

Last	updated:	10/31/2015

Page	1

Charter	School	Name:	343000860932	VOICE	CS	OF	NEW	YORK

1.	NEW	YORK	STATE	REPORT	CARD

Provide	a	direct	URL	or	web	link	to	the	most	recent	New	York	State	School	Report	Card	for	the	charter	school	(See

https://reportcards.nysed.gov/)	which	captures	school-level	enrollment	and	demographic	information,	staff	qualifications,

electronic	student	records,	and	attendance	rates,	as	prescribed	by	New	York	State	statute	(8	NYCRR	119.3).

(Charter	schools	completing	year	one	will	not	yet	have	a	School	Report	Card	or	link	to	one.	Please	type	"URL	is	not	available"	in	the	space
provided).

http://data.nysed.gov/profile.php?instid=800000061089

2.	APPENDIX	A:	PROGRESS	TOWARD	CHARTER	GOALS

The	following	tables	reflect	formatting	in	the	online	portal	required	for	Board	of	Regents-authorized	charter	schools	and	NYCDOE-authorized
charter	schools	only.	Schools	should	list	Progress	Toward	Charter	Goals	by	August	1,	2015.	If	the	goals	are	based	on	student	performance
data	that	the	school	will	not	have	access	to	before	August	1,	2015	(e.g.,	the	NYS	Assessment	results),	explain	this	in	the	"2014-2015	Progress
Toward	Attainment	of	Goal"	column.	The	information	can	be	updated	when	available.	Appendix	A	must	be	fully	completed	no	later	than
November	1,	2015.

2a.	ACADEMIC	STUDENT	PERFORMANCE	GOALS

2014-15	Progress	Toward	Attainment	of	Academic	Goals

Academic	Student
Performance	Goal

Measure	Used	to	Evaluate
Progress	Toward
Attainment	of	Goal

2014-2015	Progress
Toward	Attainment	of	Goal
-	Met,	Partially	Met,	or	Not
Met

If	Not	Met,	Describe	Efforts
School	Will	Take

Academic	Goal	1

Each	year,	75	percent	of
third	through	eighth
graders	will	perform	at	or
above	Level	3	on	the	New
York	State	ELA
examination.

NYS	Exam

This	ELA	goal	was	not	met.
Grade	-----%	at	3	&	4
3	-------------41%
4	-------------32%
5	-------------28%
6	-------------37%
7	-------------30%
All	-----------34%"

When	making	our
curriculum	choices	this
year,	we	reflected	on	the
data.	We	decided	to	adopt
the	engage.ny	modules
from	Expeditionary
Learning	for	our	middle
grades.
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Academic	Goal	2

Each	year,	the	percent	of
students	performing	at	or
above	Level	3	on	the	State
ELA	exam	in	each	tested
grade	will	place	the	school
in	the	top	quartile	of	all
similar	schools.

NYCDOE	School	Quality
Report

Not	Available	on	Nov.	1

Academic	Goal	3

Beginning	in	2010-2011,
the	percent	of	all	tested
students	who	are	enrolled
in	at	least	their	second	year
and	performing	at	or	above
Level	3	on	the	State	ELA
exam	will	be	greater	than
that	of	all	students	in	the
same	tested	grades	in	local
school	district	#30.

NYS	Exam

This	ELA	goal	was	met.
---------------VOICE------Dist.
30
----------------%	at	---------%	at
Grade	-------3	&	4---------3	&
4
--3------------	41%----------33%
--4	------------32%----------31%
--5	------------28%----------32%
--6	------------37%----------40%
--7	------------30%----------30%
ALL	-----------34%----------
30%"

Academic	Goal	4

Beginning	in	2011-2012,
each	grade-level	cohort	will
reduce	by	one-half	the	gap
between	the	percent	at	or
above	Level	3	on	the
previous	year's	State	ELA
exam	and	75	percent	at	or
above	Level	3	on	the
current	year's	State	ELA
exam.	If	a	grade-level
cohort	exceeds	75	percent
at	or	above	Level	3	in	the
previous	year,	that	cohort	is
expected	to	show	at	least
an	increase	in	the	current
year.

NYS	Exam

This	ELA	goal	was	not	met.
---------------2014-------2015
-2015	-------%	at	-------%	at
Grade	------3	&	4-------3	&	4
--3-------------16%--------33%
--4	------------43%--------31%
--5	------------40%--------32%
--6	------------33%--------40%
--7	------------30%--------30%

Academic	Goal	5

Each	year,	75	percent	of
third	through	eighth
graders	will	perform	at	or
above	Level	3	on	the	New
York	State	Mathematics
examination.

NYS	Exam

This	math	goal	was	not
met.
Grade	-----%	at	3	&	4
3	-------------57%
4	-------------71%
5	-------------61%
6	-------------65%
7	-------------69%
All	-----------64%"

When	making	our
curriculum	choices	this
year,	we	reflected	on	the
data.	We	decided	to	adopt
the	engage.ny	math
modules	for	all	grades.

Academic	Goal	6

Each	year,	the	percent	of
students	performing	at	or
above	Level	3	on	the	State
Math	exam	in	each	tested
grade	will	place	the	school
in	the	top	quartile	of	all
similar	schools.

School	Quality	Report Not	Available	on	Aug.	1

Academic	Goal	7

Beginning	in	2010-2011,
the	percent	of	all	tested
students	who	are	enrolled
in	at	least	their	second	year
and	performing	at	or	above
Level	3	on	the	State	Math
exam	will	be	greater	than
that	of	all	students	in	the
same	tested	grades	in	local
school	district	#30.

NYS	Exam

This	Math	goal	was	met.
---------------VOICE------Dist.
30
----------------%	at	------%	at
Grade	------3	&	4------3	&	4
--3------------	57%-------43%
--4	------------71%-------44%
--5	------------61%-------46%
--6	------------65%-------45%
--7	------------69%-------42%
ALL	-----------64%-------44%
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Academic	Goal	8

Beginning	in	2011-2012,
each	grade-level	cohort	will
reduce	by	one-half	the	gap
between	the	percent	at	or
above	Level	3	on	the
previous	year's	State	Math
exam	and	75	percent	at	or
above	Level	3	on	the
current	year's	State	Math
exam.	If	a	grade-level
cohort	exceeds	75	percent
at	or	above	Level	3	in	the
previous	year,	that	cohort	is
expected	to	show	at	least
an	increase	in	the	current
year.

NYS	Exam

This	Math	goal	was	not
met.

-------------2014-------2015
-2015	-----%	at	------%	at
Grade	----3	&	4------3	&	4

--3-----------17%--------50%
--4	-----------87%--------71%
--5	-----------60%--------64%
--6	-----------59%--------66%
--7	-----------77%--------69%

When	making	our
curriculum	choices	this
year,	we	reflected	on	the
data.	We	decided	to	adopt
the	engage.ny	math
modules	for	all	grades.

2a1.	Do	have	more	academic	goals	to	add?

Yes

2014-15	Progress	Toward	Attainment	of	Academic	Goals

Academic	Student
Performance	Goal

Measure	Used	to	Evaluate
Progress	Toward
Attainment	of	Goal

Measure	Used	to	Evaluate
Progress	Toward
Attainment	of	Goal	-	Met,
Partially	Met,	Not	Met

If	Not	Met,	Describe	Efforts
School	Will	Take

Academic	Goal	9

Beginning	in	2010-2011,
the	school's	aggregate
Performance	Index	(PI)	on
the	State	Math	exam	will
meet	the	Annual
Measurable	Objective
(AMO)	accountability
system.

NYS	Exam
VOICE	met	this	measure.
The	NYS	ELA	PLI	is	154,
exceeding	the	AMO	of	94.

Academic	Goal	10

Beginning	in	2011-2012
when	our	student
enrollment	reaches	4th
grade,	75	percent	of	fourth
grade	students	who	are
enrolled	in	at	least	their
second	year	will	perform	at
or	above	Level	3	on	the
New	York	State	Science
examination.

NYS	Exam

VOICE	met	this	goal.

95	percent	of	grade	4
students	achieved	a
standard	of	level	3	or	4.

Academic	Goal	11

Beginning	in	2011-2012
when	our	student
enrollment	reaches	4th
grade,	students	who	are
enrolled	in	at	least	their
second	year	and
performing	at	or	above
Level	3	on	the	State
Science	exam	will	be
greater	than	that	of	fourth
grade	students	in	local
school	district	#30.

NYS	Exam

District	Scores	Unavailable
as	of	Nov.	1

95	percent	of	VOICE	grade
4	students	who	have	been
enrolled	for	at	least	two
years	scored	at	least	a	3
on	the	NYS	Science	4
exam.
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Academic	Goal	12

Beginning	in	2014,	VOICE
will	achieve	C	or	greater	on
the	Overall	and	Progress
sections	of	the	Progress
Report	in	all	years	of	the
charter	term.

NYCDOE	Progress	Report

NYCDOE	Progress	Report
format	has	changed	and
grades	are	no	longer
assigned.

Academic	Goal	13

Academic	Goal	14

Academic	Goal	15

Academic	Goal	16

2a2.	Do	have	more	academic	goals	to	add?

No

Page	2

2b.	ORGANIZATIONAL	GOALS

2014-15	Progress	Toward	Attainment	of	Organizational	Goals

Organizational	Goal Measure	Used	to	Evaluate
Progress

2014-15	Progress	Toward
Attainment

If	Not	Met,	Describe	Efforts
School	Will	Take

Org	Goal	1

Beginning	in	2014,	VOICE
will	meet	the	comparable
CSD	targeted	percentages
for	English	Language
Learners,	Students	with
Disabilities,	and	Free	and
Reduced	lunch	students.

School	and	Public	Records
Demographic	Snapshot
http://schools.nyc.gov/Acco
untability/data/default.htm

VOICE	CS	is	making
progress	toward	this	goal.

Voice	District	30
ELL	15.9%	vs.	18.1%	
SWD	14.6%	vs.	13.4%	
FRPL	79.7%	vs	84.5%	

We	were	within	a	few
percentage	points	of
districtwide	averages	for
2014,	with	a	slightly	higher
rate	of	SPED	enrollment
and	a	slightly	lower	rate	of
ELL	and	FRPL	enrollment
compared	to	the	district.

While	we	believe	we	have
comperable	rates	of
enrollment	for	these
populations,	VOICE	will
continue	to	take	strategies
noted	in	this	report	to	keep
meeting	this	goal.
Additionally,	we	conducted
an	ELL	orientation	to	help
welcome	and	offer
additional	strategies	to
families	to	help	support
their	success.

Org	Goal	2

Each	year,	student
enrollment	will	be	within
15%	of	full	enrollment	as
defined	in	the	school's
contract.	This	will	be
maintained	on	an	ongoing
basis	and	monitored	bi-
monthly.	

School	Records

Met
Our	enrollment	range	for
2014-15	was	550-600
according	to	our	charter.	
We	remained	within	15%	of
that	window	during	the
course	of	the	year.
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Org	Goal	3

Each	year,	the	school	will
comply	with	all	applicable
laws,	rules,	regulations	and
contract	terms	applicable	to
charter	schools	including,
but	not	limited	to,	the	New
York	Charter	Schools	Act,
the	New	York	Freedom	of
Information	Law,	the	New
York	Open	Meetings	Law,
the	federal	Individuals	with
Disabilities	Education	Act,
and	federal	Family
Educational	Rights	and
Privacy	Act.

Compliance,	Board,
Authorizers	and	Legal
Team	Review

Met
We	are	in	compliance	with
regulations	set	out	for	us.
We	are	not	in	violation	of
any	local,	state	or	federal
regulation.	We	completed
requirements	on	time	and
to	satisfaction	of
authorizers	and	maintain	a
team	focused	on
compliance	matters.

Org	Goal	4

Each	year,	the	school	will
have	a	daily	student
attendance	rate	of	at	least
95	percent.

School	Records Met
95.3%	Attendance	Rate

Org	Goal	5

At	least	95%	of	the
students	will	re-enroll	at	the
school	each	year,	not
including	any	who	might
leave	due	to	geographic
reasons.	

School	Enrollment	Records

Did	Not	Meet
After	accounting	for	attrition
due	to	geographic
relocation,	we	determined
that	91.8%	of	students
have	committed	to	enroll	for
the	2015-16	school	year.

With	an	expected
reenrollment	rate	of	91%,
we	are	relatively	close	to
our	goal.	We	continue	to
build	out	our	nacent	middle
school	program	and	hope
that	families	will	choose	to
keep	their	6-8th	grade
children	with	us	in	the
future.	We	are	conducting
parent	focus	groups	this
year	to	try	to	get	a	better
sense	of	family	needs	at
VOICE	so	that	we	can	take
action	on	what	we	can	do
to	improve.	We	have
expanded	our	free	walker
permission	process	so	that
more	students	can
continue	to	attend	even
after	busing	ends	in	the	7th
grade.

2b.1	Do	you	have	more	organizational	goals	to	add?

No

2c.	FINANCIAL	GOALS

2014-15	Progress	Toward	Attainment	of	Financial	Goals

Financial	Goals Measure	Used	to	Evaluate
Progress

2014-2015	Progress
Toward	Attainment

If	Not	Met,	Describe	Efforts
School	Will	Take

Financial	Goal	1

Each	year,	the	school	will
operate	on	a	balanced
budget	and	maintain	a
stable	cash	flow.

Financial	Records	and
Upcoming	Audit

To	be	Completed	by	Nov.	1
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Financial	Goal	2

Upon	completion	of	the
school's	first	year	of
operation	and	every	year
thereafter,	the	school	will
undergo	an	independent
financial	audit	that	will
result	in	an	unqualified
opinion	and	no	major
findings.	

Independent	Audit To	be	Completed	by	Nov.	1

Financial	Goal	3

Financial	Goal	4

Financial	Goal	5



1	of	2

Appendix	B:	Total	Expenditures	and	Administrative	Expenditures	per	Child
Created:	07/27/2015

Last	updated:	07/29/2015

Page	1

Charter	School	Name:	343000860932	VOICE	CS	OF	NEW	YORK

B.	Financial	Information	
This	information	is	required	of	ALL	charter	schools.	Provide	the	following	measures	of	fiscal	performance	of	the	charter
school	in	Appendix	B	(Total	Expenditures	and	Administrative	Expenditures	Per	Child):
	

1.	Total	Expenditures	Per	Child

To	calculate	‘Total	Expenditures	per	Child’	take	total	expenditures	(from	the	unaudited	2014-15	Schedule	of	Functional	Expenses)	and
divide	by	the	year	end	per	pupil	count.	(Integers	Only.	No	dollar	signs	or	commas).

Line	1:	Total	Expenditures 8351772

Line	2:	Year	End	Per	Pupil	Count 593

Line	3:	Divide	Line	1	by	Line	2 14084

2.	Administrative	Expenditures	per	Child

To	calculate	‘Administrative	Expenditures	per	Child'	take	the	relevant	portion	from	the	‘personnel	services	cost’	row	and	the
‘management	and	general’	column	(from	the	unaudited	2014-15	Schedule	of	Functional	Expenses)	and	divide	by	the	year	end	per	pupil
count.		The	relevant	portion	that	must	be	included	in	this	calculation	is	defined	as	follows:

Administrative	Expenditures:		Administration	and	management	of	the	charter	school	includes	the	activities	and	personnel	of	the	offices	of	the
chief	school	officers,	the	treasurer,	the	finance	or	business	offices,	the	purchasing	unit,	the	employee	personnel	offices,	the	records
management	offices,	or	a	public	information	and	services	offices.		It	also	includes	those	administrative	and	management	services	provided
by	other	organizations	or	corporations	on	behalf	of	the	charter	school	for	which	the	charter	school	pays	a	fee	or	other	compensation.		
	
Please	note	the	following:

Do	not	include	the	FTE	of	personnel	dedicated	to	administration	of	the	instructional	programs.
Do	not	include	Employee	Benefit	costs	or	expenditures	in	the	above	calculations.	
A	template	for	the	Schedule	of	Functional	Expenses	is	provided	on	page	20	of	the	2014-15	Annual	Report	Guidelines	to	assist
schools	identify	the	categories	of	expenses	needed	to	compute	the	two	per	pupil	calculations.	This	template	does	not	need	to	be
completed	or	submitted	on	August	1st	as	it	will	be	submitted	November	1st	as	part	of	the	audited	financial	statements.	Therefore
schools	should	use	unaudited	amounts	for	these	per	pupil	calculations.	(See	the	2014-15	Annual	Report	Guidelines	in	"Resources"
area	of	your	portal	task	page).

To	calculate	‘Administrative	Expenditures	per	Child'	take	the	relevant	portion	from	the	‘personnel	services	cost’	row	and
the	‘management	and	general’	column	(from	the	2014-15	Schedule	of	Functional	Expenses)	and	divide	by	the	year	end
per	pupil	count.	(Integers	Only.	No	dollar	signs	or	commas).
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Line	1:	Relevant	Personnel	Services	Cost	(Row) 00

Line	2:	Management	and	General	Cost	(Column) 00

Line	3:	Sum	of	Line	1	and	Line	2 1067076

Line	4:	Year	End	Per	Pupil	Count 593

Line	5:	Divide	Line	3	by	the	Year	End	Per	Pupil	Count 1799

Thank	you.
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October 23, 2015 
 
 
To the Audit Committee 
VOICE Charter School 
 
 
We have audited the financial statements of VOICE Charter School (the “School”) for the year 
ended June 30, 2015 and are prepared to issue our report thereon dated October 23, 2015. 
Professional standards require that we provide you with the following information related to our 
audit. This letter is divided into two sections: 1) required communications from the auditors to 
those with audit oversight responsibilities and 2) opportunities for strengthening internal controls 
or enhancing operating efficiency and our related recommendations. 
 
REQUIRED COMMUNICATIONS 
 
A.  Our Responsibility under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards: 
 

As stated in our engagement letter July 1, 2015, our responsibility, as described by 
professional standards, is to express an opinion about whether the financial statements 
prepared by management with your oversight are fairly presented, in all material respects, in 
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Our audit of the financial 
statements does not relieve you or management of your responsibilities. Our responsibility is 
to plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement. As part of our audit, we considered 
the internal control of VOICE Charter School. Such considerations were solely for the 
purpose of determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning 
such internal control. We are responsible for communicating significant matters related to the 
audit that are, in our professional judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the 
financial reporting process. However, we are not required to design procedures specifically to 
identify such matters. 

 
B.  Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit: 
 

We performed the audit according to the planned scope and timing previously communicated 
to you in our meeting about planning matters on July 23, 2015. 

 
C.  Auditor Independence: 
 

We affirm that MBAF CPAs, LLC is independent with respect to VOICE Charter School. 
 
D. Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices: 
 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. In 
accordance with the terms of our engagement letter, we will advise management about the 
appropriateness of accounting policies and their application. The significant accounting 
policies used by VOICE Charter School are described in Note 2 to the financial statements. 
We noted no transactions entered into by the School during the year for which there is a lack 
of authoritative guidance or consensus. There are no significant transactions that have been 
recognized in the financial statements in a different period than when the transaction 
occurred. 

  



 

 
 
 

E. Accounting Estimates Used in the Financial Statements: 
 
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by 
management and are based on management's knowledge and experience about past and 
current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are 
particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and because of 
the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. 
The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements were: 
 

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts: 
As of June 30, 2015, VOICE Charter School recorded grants and other receivables of 
$78,043. Management concluded that no allowance for doubtful accounts was 
necessary. Management calculated based on the assessment of the credit-worthiness of 
the School’s donors, the aged basis of the receivables, as well as economic conditions 
and historical information. Based on our audit procedures which included a discussion 
with the school leadership and a review of subsequent collections we concur with 
management’s conclusion. 
 
Pension Plan: 
The School participates in the Teachers' Retirement System of the City of New York 
(“TRS” or “The Plan”), which covers principals and teachers. Employees enrolled in the 
Plan are required to contribute 4.85% for the first ten years and 1.85% thereafter through 
twenty-seven years. Employees become vested in the School’s contribution to the plan 
after ten years of service. The School’s contribution is a rate based used on actuarial 
assumptions and methods and a percentage of the schools’ contributions. During the 
years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, the School used a rate of 12.10% and 12%, 
respectively. The difference between the two percentages yielded no accumulative credit 
for the year ended June 30, 2015. For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, 
the School incurred a pension expense of $382,968 and $318,133, respectively, which is 
included in payroll taxes and employee benefits in the accompanying statement of 
functional expenses. 
 
Functional Statement Allocation: 
Management's estimate of the allocation of functional expenses is directly identified with 
the program or supporting service to which they relate.  We evaluated the key factors and 
assumptions used to develop the estimate in determining that it is reasonable in relation 
to the financial statements taken as a whole. 
 
Depreciation: 
Management’s estimate of depreciation is based on estimated useful lives of assets. We    
evaluated the estimated useful lives of assets in comparison to generally accepted 
accounting principles in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial 
statements taken as a whole. 
 

F.  Sensitive Disclosures Affecting the Financial Statements: 
 

The disclosures in the financial statements are neutral, consistent, and clear. Certain financial 
statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial 
statement users. The most sensitive disclosure(s) affecting the financial statements were: 

 
The disclosure of Risk Management in Note 6 to the financial statements describes 
various risks to which the School is exposed. 
 

G.  Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements: 
 

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified 
during the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate 
level of management. Management has corrected all such misstatements. We will identify 
those adjustments proposed both corrected and uncorrected: 

  



 

 
 

Proposed and Corrected: 
 

There were 4 audit adjustments that decreased net assets by approximately $5,400. In the 
prior year, there were 8 audit adjustments (1 of which was a reclassifying entry) that 
increased net assets by approximately $196,000. The adjustments were as follow: 
 

1. To adjust the balance sheet by approximately $24,000 for an accrual of a prepaid 
expense. 
 

2. Entry provided by client to decrease net assets by approximately $6,000 to adjust per 
pupil revenues per the final reconciliation provided to NYCDOE. 

 
Proposed and Uncorrected: 

 
There were no audit adjustments proposed and uncorrected during the fiscal year.  

 
H. Audit Difficulties and Disagreements with Management: 
 

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management 
as a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our 
satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor's report. 
 
We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.  

 
I. Management Representations: 
 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the 
management representation letter dated October 23, 2015. 

 
J. Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants: 
 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing 
and accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion" on certain situations. If a 
consultation involves application of an accounting principle to the School's financial 
statements or a determination of the type of auditor's opinion that may be expressed on those 
statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to 
determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no 
such consultations with other accountants. 

 
K. Other Audit Findings or Issues: 
 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles 
and auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the School's 
auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional 
relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention. 

 
We wish to thank management and personnel for their support and assistance during our audit.  
We would be pleased to further discuss the contents of this report with you at your convenience. 
 
This information is intended solely for the use of the Audit Committee, Board of Trustees, and 
management of VOICE Charter School and is not intended to be and should not be used by 
anyone other than these specified parties. 
 
 
Very truly yours, 
 
 

 
 

MBAF CPAs, LLC 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Board of Trustees 
VOICE Charter School 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of VOICE Charter School (the 
“School”), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2015, and 
the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then 
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.  

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal 
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the School’s preparation and fair presentation of 
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the School’s internal control. Accordingly we express no such opinion. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion. 



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of VOICE Charter School as of June 30, 2015, and the 
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Report on Summarized Comparative Information 

We have previously audited VOICE Charter School’s 2014 financial statements and we 
expressed an unmodified opinion on those audited financial statements in our report 
dated October 20, 2014. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information 
presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014 is consistent, in all material 
respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report 
dated October 23, 2015 on our consideration of the School’s internal control over 
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that 
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting 
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part 
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering 
the School’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

New York, NY 
October 23, 2015



2015 2014

Cash 1,595,806$ 1,646,746$
Cash - NYCDOE set-aside 70,000 70,000
Grants and other receivables 78,043 170,519
Prepaid expenses and other assets 473,129 449,397
Property and equipment, net 2,015,826 1,459,788
Construction in progress 409,461 334,794

TOTAL ASSETS 4,642,265$ 4,131,244$

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 107,242$ 87,915$
Accrued salaries and other payroll related expenses 1,169,832 1,025,447
Deferred rent 1,009,253 906,940

TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,286,327 2,020,302

NET ASSETS
Net assets - unrestricted 2,305,938 2,010,942
Net assets - temporarily restricted 50,000 100,000

TOTAL NET ASSETS 2 355 938 2 110 942

ASSETS

VOICE CHARTER SCHOOL

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30, 2015

(WITH SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION FOR JUNE 30, 2014)

TOTAL NET ASSETS 2,355,938 2,110,942

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 4,642,265$     4,131,244$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

3



T
em

p
o

ra
ri

ly
  

T
o

ta
l

T
o

ta
l

U
n

re
st

ri
ct

ed
R

es
tr

ic
te

d
20

15
20

14

O
P

E
R

A
T

IN
G

 R
E

V
E

N
U

E
S

ta
te

 a
nd

 lo
ca

l p
er

 p
up

il 
op

er
at

in
g 

re
ve

nu
e

9,
06

3,
97

5
$ 

  
  

  
  

-
$ 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

9,
06

3,
97

5
$

8,
18

3,
31

9
$ 

  
  

 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t 
gr

an
ts

 a
nd

 c
on

tr
ac

ts
37

1,
70

9
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
37

1,
70

9
22

3,
76

5

9,
43

5,
68

4
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
9,

43
5,

68
4

8,
40

7,
08

4

E
X

P
E

N
S

E
S

P
ro

gr
am

 s
er

vi
ce

s
8

,0
7

0
,6

4
1

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

8,
07

0,
64

1
7,

17
2,

84
0

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d 

ge
ne

ra
l

1,
17

5,
39

9
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
1,

17
5,

39
9

  
  

  
  

88
8,

98
7

9,
24

6,
04

0
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
9,

24
6,

04
0

  
  

  
  

8,
06

1,
82

7

S
U

R
P

LU
S

 F
R

O
M

 S
C

H
O

O
L 

O
P

E
R

A
T

IO
N

18
9,

64
4

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
18

9,
64

4
  

  
  

  
  

 
34

5,
25

7

S
U

P
P

O
R

T
 A

N
D

 O
T

H
E

R
 I

N
C

O
M

E
C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

, 
gr

an
ts

, 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

in
co

m
e

65
0

50
,0

00
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

50
,6

50
2,

61
6

(W
IT

H
 S

U
M

M
A

R
IZ

E
D

 C
O

M
P

A
R

A
T

IV
E

 IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
 F

O
R

 T
H

E
 Y

E
A

R
 E

N
D

E
D

 J
U

N
E

 3
0,

 2
01

4)

V
O

IC
E

 C
H

A
R

T
E

R
 S

C
H

O
O

L

S
T

A
T

E
M

E
N

T
 O

F
 A

C
T

IV
IT

IE
S

F
O

R
 T

H
E

 Y
E

A
R

 E
N

D
E

D
 J

U
N

E
 3

0,
 2

01
5

In
te

re
st

 in
co

m
e

4,
70

2
-

4,
70

2
2,

12
5

N
et

 a
ss

et
s 

re
le

as
ed

 f
ro

m
 r

es
tr

ic
tio

ns
10

0,
00

0
(1

00
,0

00
)

-
-

10
5,

35
2

(5
0,

00
0)

55
,3

52
4,

74
1

C
H

A
N

G
E

 I
N

 N
E

T
 A

S
S

E
T

S
29

4,
99

6
(5

0,
00

0)
24

4,
99

6
34

9,
99

8

N
E

T
 A

S
S

E
T

S
 -

 B
E

G
IN

N
IN

G
 O

F
 Y

E
A

R
2,

01
0,

94
2

10
0,

00
0

2,
11

0,
94

2
1,

76
0,

94
4

N
E

T
 A

S
S

E
T

S
 -

 E
N

D
 O

F
 Y

E
A

R
2,

30
5,

93
8

$
50

,0
00

$
2,

35
5,

93
8

$
2,

11
0,

94
2

$ 
  

  
 

T
h

e
 a

cc
o

m
p

a
n

yi
n

g
 n

o
te

s 
a

re
 a

n
 in

te
g

ra
l p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

se
 f

in
a

n
ci

a
l s

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

. 4



S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

S
er

vi
ce

s

G
en

er
al

S
pe

ci
al

T
ot

al
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t

E
du

ca
tio

n
E

du
ca

tio
n

P
ro

gr
am

an
d 

G
en

er
al

20
15

20
14

P
er

so
n

n
el

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
co

st
s:

N
o

. o
f 

P
o

si
ti

o
n

s
In

st
ru

ct
io

na
l p

er
so

nn
el

70
3,

50
7,

48
7

$ 
   

 
67

0,
84

8
$ 

   
   

 
4,

17
8,

33
5

$ 
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

4,
17

8,
33

5
$ 

   
 

4,
04

4,
23

4
$ 

   
 

N
on

-in
st

ru
ct

io
na

l p
er

so
nn

el
27

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
62

5,
04

9
   

   
   

 
62

5,
04

9
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

T
ot

al
 s

al
ar

ie
s 

an
d 

w
ag

es
3,

50
7,

48
7

   
   

 
67

0,
84

8
   

   
   

 
4,

17
8,

33
5

   
   

 
62

5,
04

9
   

   
   

 
4,

80
3,

38
4

   
   

 
4,

04
4,

23
4

   
   

 
P

ay
ro

ll 
ta

xe
s 

an
d 

em
pl

oy
ee

 b
en

ef
its

71
5,

41
9

   
   

   
 

71
,0

61
   

   
   

  
 

78
6,

48
0

   
   

   
 

10
9,

61
9

   
   

   
 

89
6,

09
9

   
   

   
 

75
2,

21
0

   
   

   
 

R
et

ire
m

en
t b

en
ef

its
32

4,
37

9
   

   
   

 
53

,6
73

   
   

   
  

 
37

8,
05

2
   

   
   

 
48

,1
59

   
   

   
  

 
42

6,
21

1
   

   
   

 
31

8,
13

3
   

   
   

 
P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l d

ev
el

op
m

en
t

26
3,

95
3

   
   

   
 

23
,0

25
   

   
   

  
 

28
6,

97
8

   
   

   
 

4,
60

3
   

   
   

   
  

29
1,

58
1

   
   

   
 

36
0,

35
4

   
   

   
 

Le
ga

l f
ee

s
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

11
1,

00
4

   
   

   
 

11
1,

00
4

   
   

   
 

70
,6

59
   

   
   

  
 

A
ud

it 
an

d 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

fe
es

21
,1

37
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
21

,1
37

   
   

   
  

 
40

,2
99

   
   

   
  

 
61

,4
36

   
   

   
  

 
64

,1
22

   
   

   
  

 
P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l f

ee
s 

- 
ot

he
r

19
1,

00
4

   
   

   
 

22
,0

84
   

   
   

  
 

21
3,

08
8

   
   

   
 

9,
69

5
   

   
   

   
  

22
2,

78
3

   
   

   
 

14
7,

84
0

   
   

   
 

O
th

er
 c

on
tr

ac
te

d 
se

rv
ic

es
46

2,
58

2
   

   
   

 
15

4,
19

4
   

   
   

 
61

6,
77

6
   

   
   

 
37

,3
21

   
   

   
  

 
65

4,
09

7
   

   
   

 
68

0,
56

7
   

   
   

 
S

tu
de

nt
an

d
st

af
fr

ec
ru

itm
en

t
99

20
6

-
99

20
6

-
99

20
6

70
22

2

V
O

IC
E

 C
H

A
R

T
E

R
 S

C
H

O
O

L

S
T

A
T

E
M

E
N

T
 O

F
 F

U
N

C
T

IO
N

A
L 

E
X

P
E

N
S

E
S

F
O

R
 T

H
E

 Y
E

A
R

 E
N

D
E

D
 J

U
N

E
 3

0,
 2

01
5

(W
IT

H
 S

U
M

M
A

R
IZ

E
D

 C
O

M
P

A
R

A
T

IV
E

 IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
 F

O
R

 T
H

E
 Y

E
A

R
 E

N
D

E
D

 J
U

N
E

 3
0,

 2
01

4)

P
ro

g
ra

m
 S

er
vi

ce
s

T
he

 a
cc

om
pa

ny
in

g 
no

te
s 

ar
e 

an
 in

te
gr

al
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

se
 fi

na
nc

ia
l s

ta
te

m
en

ts
. 5

S
tu

de
nt

an
d

st
af

fr
ec

ru
itm

en
t

99
,2

06
-

99
,2

06
   

   
   

  
-

99
,2

06
70

,2
22

C
ur

ric
ul

um
 / 

cl
as

sr
oo

m
 e

xp
en

se
s

32
4,

82
9

   
   

   
 

51
,7

95
   

   
   

  
 

37
6,

62
4

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
37

6,
62

4
   

   
   

 
39

2,
15

3
   

   
   

 
F

oo
d 

se
rv

ic
es

2,
10

7
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

10
7

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
10

7
   

   
   

   
  

64
5

   
   

   
   

   
  

S
tu

de
nt

 fi
el

d 
tr

ip
s 

an
d 

in
ce

nt
iv

e 
pr

og
ra

m
s

7,
62

6
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
7,

62
6

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

7,
62

6
   

   
   

   
  

3,
53

1
   

   
   

   
  

P
ar

en
t a

ct
iv

iti
es

1,
38

2
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

38
2

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
38

2
   

   
   

   
  

7,
15

5
   

   
   

   
  

P
os

ta
ge

, p
rin

tin
g,

 a
nd

 c
op

yi
ng

14
,2

43
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
14

,2
43

   
   

   
  

 
20

5
   

   
   

   
   

  
14

,4
48

   
   

   
  

 
5,

09
8

   
   

   
   

  
In

su
ra

nc
e

36
,5

06
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
36

,5
06

   
   

   
  

 
4,

97
8

   
   

   
   

  
41

,4
84

   
   

   
  

 
35

,3
67

   
   

   
  

 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
te

ch
no

lo
gy

57
,8

10
   

   
   

  
 

2,
80

2
   

   
   

   
  

60
,6

12
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
60

,6
12

   
   

   
  

 
52

,8
03

   
   

   
  

 
Le

as
ed

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t

11
,0

78
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
11

,0
78

   
   

   
  

 
1,

40
8

   
   

   
   

  
12

,4
86

   
   

   
  

 
10

,6
80

   
   

   
  

 
N

on
-c

ap
ita

liz
ed

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t /

 fu
rn

is
hi

ng
s

56
,1

53
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
56

,1
53

   
   

   
  

 
2,

64
8

   
   

   
   

  
58

,8
01

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

R
ep

ai
rs

 a
nd

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

12
2,

89
5

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
12

2,
89

5
   

   
   

 
4,

39
2

   
   

   
   

  
12

7,
28

7
   

   
   

 
11

7,
55

6
   

   
   

 
O

cc
up

an
cy

 a
nd

 fa
ci

lit
y 

co
st

s
50

1,
07

1
   

   
   

 
88

,4
24

   
   

   
  

 
58

9,
49

5
   

   
   

 
81

,5
39

   
   

   
  

 
67

1,
03

4
   

   
   

 
67

2,
68

6
   

   
   

 
U

til
iti

es
47

,9
23

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

47
,9

23
   

   
   

  
 

6,
29

4
   

   
   

   
  

54
,2

17
   

   
   

  
 

61
,7

80
   

   
   

  
 

D
ep

re
ci

at
io

n 
an

d 
am

or
tiz

at
io

n
13

1,
79

6
   

   
   

 
2,

00
2

   
   

   
   

  
13

3,
79

8
   

   
   

 
36

,7
81

17
0,

57
9

11
7,

49
7

   
   

   
 

O
ffi

ce
 e

xp
en

se
30

,1
47

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

30
,1

47
   

   
   

  
 

51
,4

05
   

   
   

  
 

81
,5

52
   

   
   

  
 

76
,5

35
   

   
   

  
 

6,
93

0,
73

3
$ 

   
 

1,
13

9,
90

8
$ 

   
 

8,
07

0,
64

1
$ 

   
 

1,
17

5,
39

9
$ 

   
 

9,
24

6,
04

0
$ 

   
 

8,
06

1,
82

7
$ 

   
 

T
he

 a
cc

om
pa

ny
in

g 
no

te
s 

ar
e 

an
 in

te
gr

al
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

se
 fi

na
nc

ia
l s

ta
te

m
en

ts
. 5



2015 2014

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash received from operating revenue 9,431,576$     8,548,668$     
Cash received from interest income 4,702              2,125              
Other cash received 147,234          118,373          
Cash paid to employees and suppliers (8,833,168)      (7,645,515)      

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 750,344          1,023,651       

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property and equipment (801,284)         (481,048)         

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (801,284)         (481,048)         

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH (50,940)           542,603          

CASH - BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,646,746       1,104,143       

CASH - END OF YEAR 1,595,806$     1,646,746$     

VOICE CHARTER SCHOOL

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

(WITH SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Reconciliation of change in net assets to net cash provided by operating activities:

Change in net assets 244,996$        349,998$        
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
  provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 170,579         117,497         
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Grants and other receivables 92,476           257,341          
Prepaid expenses and other assets (23,732)          (52,596)           
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 19,327           (2,569)             
Accrued salaries and other payroll related expenses 144,385         131,666          
Deferred rent 102,313         222,314          

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 750,344$        1,023,651$     

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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VOICE CHARTER SCHOOL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2015 
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1. NATURE OF THE ORGANIZATION 

VOICE Charter School (the “School”) aims to create a safe and healthy learning environment that will nurture, 
motivate, and challenge all of our children to achieve the highest level of academic excellence and to develop into 
mindful, responsible, contributing participants in their education, their community, and the diverse society in which 
we live. The School incorporates music into a rigorous academic program.  On January 15, 2008, the Board of 
Regents of the University of the State of New York granted the School a provisional charter valid for a term of five 
years and renewable upon expiration. The charter was renewed for an additional 5 year period on January 15, 
2013 for the period ending June 30, 2018. 

On October 3, 2008, the School, as determined by the Internal Revenue Service, was approved for Federal 
income tax exemption under section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code (“IRC”) as an organization described in 
Section 501(c)(3) of the IRC. It is also currently exempt under a similar provision under New York State income 
tax laws. The School has also been classified as an entity that is not a private foundation within the meaning of 
Section 509(a) of the IRC and qualifies for deductible contributions as provided in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii) of the 
IRC. The School’s primary sources of income are per pupil and other government funding. VOICE Charter 
School, located in Long Island City, Queens, primarily educates children residing in District 30.   

In fiscal year 2015, the School operated classes for students in kindergarten through seventh grade. The seventh 
grade was added beginning in fiscal year 2015. 

The New York City Department of Education (“NYCDOE”) provides free lunches and transportation directly to a 
majority of the School’s students. 

2.      SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 Financial Statement Presentation 

The School’s financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”). 

The classification of an organization’s net assets and its support, revenues, and expenses is based on the 
existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.  It requires that the amounts for each of the three classes of 
net assets, permanently restricted, temporarily restricted, and unrestricted, be displayed in a statement of 
financial position and that the amounts of change in each of those classes of net assets be displayed in a 
statement of activities. 

 These classes are defined as follows: 

 Permanently Restricted

Net assets resulting from contributions and other inflows of assets whose use by the School is limited by donor-
imposed stipulations that neither expire by passage of time nor can be fulfilled or otherwise removed by actions of 
the School. 

 Temporarily Restricted

Net assets resulting from contributions and other inflows of assets whose use by the School are limited by donor-
imposed stipulations that either expire by passage of time or can be fulfilled and removed by actions of the 
School pursuant to those stipulations. When such stipulations end or are fulfilled, such temporarily restricted net 
assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities. However, if a 
restriction is fulfilled in the same period in which the contribution is received, the School reports the support as 
unrestricted.



VOICE CHARTER SCHOOL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2015 
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2.      SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

 Unrestricted

 The part of net assets that is neither permanently nor temporarily restricted by donor-imposed stipulations. 

 Cash 

Cash – NYCDOE set-aside consists of an escrow account of $70,000, which is held for contingency purposes as 
required by the NYCDOE. 

 Grants and Other Receivables 

Grants and other receivables represent unconditional promises to give by donors. Grants and other receivables 
that are expected to be collected within one year and recorded at net realizable value amounts to $78,043 and 
$170,519 at June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The School has determined that no allowance for 
uncollectible accounts is necessary as of June 30, 2015 and 2014. Such estimate is based on management’s 
assessments of the creditworthiness of its donors, the aged basis of its receivables, as well as current economic 
conditions and historical information.  

 Revenue Recognition 

Revenue from the state and local governments resulting from the School’s charter status is based on the number 
of students enrolled and is recorded when services are performed in accordance with the charter agreement.  

Revenue from federal, state and local government grants and contracts are recorded by the School when 
qualifying expenditures are incurred and billable. Funds received in advance for which qualifying expenditures 
have not been incurred, if any, are reflected as refundable advances from state and local government grants in 
the accompanying statement of financial position. 

 Premises Provided by Government Authorities 

The School does not record any in-kind contributions and related costs with respect to dedicated and shared 
space provided to it by the NYCDOE (see Note 8) as the premises are temporary in nature, is excess shared 
space whereby a fair value cannot be determined, and is industry practice. 

 Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Property and equipment are being 
depreciated in accordance with the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives. Leasehold 
improvements are amortized over the shorter of the life of the asset or the life of the lease. The School has 
established a $5,000 threshold above which assets are capitalized. Property and equipment acquired with certain 
government contract funds is recorded as expenses pursuant to the terms of the contract in which the 
government funding source retains ownership of the property. Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense 
as incurred; major renewals and betterments are capitalized. 

 Impairment 

The School reviews long-lived assets to determine whether there has been any permanent impairment whenever 
events or circumstances indicate the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. If the sum of the 
expected future undiscounted cash flows is less than the carrying amount of the assets, the School recognizes an 
impairment loss. No impairment losses were recognized for the year ended June 30, 2015. 



VOICE CHARTER SCHOOL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2015 
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2.      SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

 Deferred Rent 

In accordance with U.S. GAAP, rent expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, 
including future escalations of rent, rather than in accordance with lease payments. Deferred rent represents the 
adjustment to future rents as a result of using the straight-line method. 

 Functional Allocation of Expenses 

Expenses that can be directly identified with a specific program or supporting service are charged accordingly. 
Other expenses by function have been allocated among program and supporting service classifications based 
upon benefits received. 

 Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S GAAP requires management to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

 Subsequent Events 

The School has evaluated events through October 23, 2015, which is the date the financial statements were 
available to be issued. 

 Comparative Financial Information 

The June 30, 2015 financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative information in total 
but not by net asset class. In addition, only certain of the notes to the financial statements for June 30, 2014 are 
presented. As a result, the June 30, 2014 comparative information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a 
presentation in conformity with U.S. GAAP. Accordingly, such June 30, 2014 information should be read in 
conjunction with the School’s financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2014, from which the summarized 
information was derived. 

 Income Taxes 

The School follows the accounting standard for uncertainty in income taxes. The standard prescribes a minimum 
recognition threshold and measurement methodology that a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax 
return is required to meet before being recognized in the financial statements. It also provides guidance for 
derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, disclosure and transition.  

The School files informational returns in the federal and New York State jurisdictions. With few exceptions, the 
School is no longer subject to federal, state, or local income tax examinations for fiscal years before 2012. 

The School believes that it has appropriate support for the positions taken on its tax returns. Nonetheless, the 
amounts ultimately paid, if any, upon resolution of the issues raised by the taxing authorities may differ materially 
from the amounts accrued for each year. Management believes that its nonprofit status would be sustained upon 
examination. 

Should there be interest on underpayments of income tax, the School would classify it as “Interest Expense.” The 
School would classify penalties in connection with underpayments of tax as “Other Expense.”   



VOICE CHARTER SCHOOL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2015 
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2.      SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

 Recent Accounting Pronouncement

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued an accounting standard update which 
affects the revenue recognition of entities that enter into either (1) certain contracts to transfer goods or services 
to customers or (2) certain contracts for the transfer of nonfinancial assets. The update indicates an entity should 
recognize revenue in an amount that reflects the consideration the entity expects to be entitled to in exchange for 
the goods or services transferred by the entity. The update is to be applied to the beginning of the year of 
implementation or retrospectively and is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2018 and in 
interim periods in annual periods beginning after December 15, 2019. Early application is permitted but no earlier 
than annual reporting periods beginning after December 31, 2016. The School is currently evaluating the effect 
the update will have on its financial statements. 

Reclassifications 

Certain amounts in the prior year financial statements have been reclassified for comparative purposes to 
conform to the presentation in the current year financial statements. This reclassification had no effect on 
previously reported change in net assets. 

3.      PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

 Property and equipment consist of the following as of June 30: 
    
      Estimated 

2015  2014  Useful Lives
 Furniture and fixtures $ 258,953 $ 136,676 7 years 
 Musical instruments  6,610  6,610 3 years 
 Computers    112,218  74,842 3 years 
 Software    35,425  26,401 3 years 
 Leasehold improvements  2,029,453 1,471,513 Life of lease 

   2,442,659  1,716,042 

 Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization  (426,833)  (256,254)

$ 2,015,826 $ 1,459,788

      
Depreciation and amortization expense for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 was $170,579 and 
$117,497, respectively. 

4. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 

The School is undergoing construction due to the expansion of the School. The School operates on a work-order 
basis and has not entered into any contract. For the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, construction in 
progress was $409,461 and $334,794, respectively.  

While the School is not committed to any construction contract, the total estimated cost of the construction project 
is approximately $3,450,000. At June 30, 2015, approximately 59% or $2,029,000 of the project has been 
completed and is included in leasehold improvements.  



VOICE CHARTER SCHOOL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2015 
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5.     PENSION PLAN 

The School participates in the Teachers' Retirement System of the City of New York (“TRS” or The “Plan”), which 
covers principals and teachers. Employees enrolled in the Plan are required to contribute 4.85% for the first ten 
years and 1.85% thereafter through twenty-seven years. Employees become vested in the School’s contribution 
to the Plan after ten years of service. The School’s contribution is a rate based on actuarial assumptions and 
methods and a percentage of the school’s contributions. During the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, the 
School used a rate of 12.10% and 12%, respectively. The difference between the two percentages yielded no 
accumulative credit for the year ended June 30, 2015. For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, the 
School incurred a pension expense of $382,968 and $318,133, respectively, which is included in retirement 
benefits in the accompanying statement of functional expenses. 

Accounting standards require employers participating in multiemployer plans to provide detailed quantitative and 
qualitative disclosures for these plans. TRS, which is sponsored by the City of New York, does not impose an 
expiration date on participating employers. The zone status is consistent with the Pension Protection Act and is 
for the Plan’s year-end at June 30, 2014. The zone status is based on information provided in the TRS 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, which includes information from TRS’ actuary and is certified by TRS’ 
auditor. Among other factors, plans in the red zone are generally less than 65 percent funded, plans in the yellow 
zone are less than 80 percent funded and plans in the green zone are at least 80 percent funded. TRS did not 
report a rehabilitation plan. Information related to the Plan is comprised of the following: 

Contributions 

Pension Fund

Plan 
Month/Day
End Date Zone Status 2015 2014 

Teachers’ 
Retirement System 06/30

Red – As of June 30, 
2014 $382,968 $318,133 

Employees may also participate in a Tax-Deferred Annuity (“TDA”) Program, which is defined-contribution 
pension plan. Employees may contribute as little as 1% of their salary to the TDA Program and as much as their 
designated Maximum Contribution Rate. This rate is based on their salary and the allowable maximum 
contribution amount the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) has established for that year. 

In July 2014, the School opted to participate in a 403(b) Plan (“403(b) Plan”), which is open to all salaried 
employees of the School who are at least 21 years of age and have been employed at least six months at the 
School. The vesting period for the 403(b) Plan is two years. The Plan calls for the School to make a base 
contribution of 3.5% of an employee’s salary and match 100% of an employee’s contribution up to 10% of their 
fiscal year salary. The base and matching contributions will not be offered to employees who participate in the 
TRS plan. The School incurred 403(b) expenses of $43,243 for the year ended June 30, 2015. 

6.     RISK MANAGEMENT

The School is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; thefts of, damage to, and destruction of assets; 
injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The School maintains commercial insurance to help protect itself 
from such risks. 

The School entered into contractual relationships with certain governmental funding sources. The governmental 
agencies may request return of funds as a result of noncompliance by the School, as well as additional funds for 
the use of facilities. The accompanying financial statements make no provision for the possible disallowance or 
refund.
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7.     CONCENTRATIONS 

Financial instruments that potentially subject the School to concentrations of credit risk consist principally of cash 
deposits. Accounts are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) up to $250,000. 

The School received approximately 96% and 97% of its total revenue from per pupil funding from the NYCDOE 
during the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively. 

 The School's grants and other receivables consist of two major grantors as of June 30, 2015.   

 The School’s payables consist of three major vendors as of June 30, 2015. 

8.     COMMITMENT AND CONTINGENCIES 

In June 2011, the School entered into a lease agreement with The Roman Catholic Church of St. Rita for leasing 
the premises at 36-25 11th Street, Long Island City, New York 11106. The lease term is from July 1, 2011 to June 
30, 2031. Future minimum rental lease payments are as follows: 

 June 30,

 2016 $ 560,000
 2017  616,200
 2018  631,400
 2019  647,185
 2020  663,365
 Thereafter  8,488,117

$ 11,606,267

Rent expense for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 was $671,034 and $672,686, respectively, and is 
included in occupancy and facility costs on the statement of functional expenses. 

The School also shares space with P.S. 111 Jacob Blackwell located at 37-15 13th Street, Queens, New York 
11101. The School occupies 8,971 square feet at this location, and shares another 7,828 square feet. There is no 
lease or agreement in place for the shared space and no rent is charged to the School.  

9.     TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS 

Temporarily restricted net assets are time restricted and consist of the following balances at June 30, 2015: 

   2015 
Time restricted: 
     KPMG Grant $ 50,000 

Total temporarily restricted net assets:  $ 50,000 
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on 
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in 
Accordance With Government Auditing Standards  

To the Board of Trustees 
VOICE Charter School 

We have audited in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of VOICE Charter 
School (the “School”), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2015, and the 
related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended, and the 
related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 23, 2015. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the School’s internal 
control over financial reporting (“internal control”) to determine the audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control.  
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the School’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by 
those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations during our audit, we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School’s financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express 
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that 
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of the School in a separate letter dated 
October 23, 2015. 
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Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
School’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the School’s internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

New York, NY 
October 23, 2015 
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2015-16 Budget & Cash Flow Template

General Instructions and Notes for New Application Budgets and Cash Flows Templates

 1 
 2 

 3 

 4 

 5 

New York State Education Department 
 Request for Proposals to Establish Charter Schools Authorized by the 

Board of Regents

Complete ALL SIX columns in BLUE
Enter information into the GRAY cells

Cells containing RED triangles in the upper right corner in columns B through G contain guidance on 
that particular item

Funding by School District information for all NYS School district is located on the State Aid website 
at https://stateaid.nysed.gov/charter/. Refer to this website for per-pupil tuition funding for all school 
districts. Rows may be inserted in the worksheet to accomodate additional districts if necessary.

The Assumptions column should be completed for all revenue and expense items unless the item is 
self-explanatory. Where applicable, please reference the page number or section in the application 
narrative that indicates the assumption being made. For instance, student enrollment would 
reference the applicable page number in Section I, C of the application narrative.



VOICE Charter School
PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2015-2016  Assumptions

July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2016 DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable

Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10.

OTHER FUNDRAISING TOTAL

Total Revenue  8,741,175  1,251,289  373,624  -  -  10,366,088 

Total Expenses  8,566,207  878,519  -  -  921,362  10,366,088 

Net Income  174,968  372,770  373,624  -  (921,362)  0 

Actual Student Enrollment  508  94  - 

Total Paid Student Enrollment  508  94  602 

 PROGRAM SERVICES  SUPPORT SERVICES 

 OTHER  FUNDRAISING  TOTAL 

REVENUE

REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES

Per Pupil Revenue

District of Location $13,877.00  8,356,729  1,203,541  373,624  -  -  9,933,894 

School District 2 (Enter Name)  -  -  -  -  -  - 

School District 3 (Enter Name)  -  -  -  -  -  - 

School District 4 (Enter Name)  -  -  -  -  -  - 

School District 5 (Enter Name)  -  -  -  -  -  - 

 8,356,729  1,203,541  373,624  -  -  9,933,894 

Special Education Revenue  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Grants

Stimulus  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Other  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Other State Revenue  -  -  -  -  -  - 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES  8,356,729  1,203,541  373,624  -  -  9,933,894 

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING

IDEA Special Needs  -  47,748  -  -  -  47,748 

Title I  171,688  -  -  -  -  171,688 

Title Funding - Other  23,232  -  -  -  -  23,232 

School Food Service (Free Lunch)  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Grants

Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Other  -  -  -  -  - 

Other Federal Revenue  -  -  -  -  -  - 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES  194,920  47,748  -  -  -  242,668 

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE

Contributions and Donations, Fundraising  50,000  -  -  -  -  50,000 

Erate Reimbursement  73,662  -  -  -  -  73,662 

Interest Income, Earnings on Investments,  3,000  -  -  -  -  3,000 

NYC-DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Developmt.)  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Food Service (Income from meals)  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Text Book  47,864  -  -  -  -  47,864 

Other Local Revenue  15,000  -  -  -  -  15,000 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES  189,526  -  -  -  -  189,526 

TOTAL REVENUE  8,741,175  1,251,289  373,624  -  -  10,366,088 

List exact titles and staff FTE"s ( Full time eqiuilivalent)

EXPENSES

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS  No. of Positions 

Executive Management  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Instructional Management  3.00  208,176  -  -  -  208,176  416,351 

Deans, Directors & Coordinators  3.00  255,000  -  -  -  -  255,000 

CFO / Director of Finance  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Operation / Business Manager  6.00  194,400  -  -  -  246,600  441,000 

Administrative Staff  18.00  542,992  -  -  -  74,044  617,036 

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF  30  1,200,568  -  -  -  528,820  1,729,387 

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS

Teachers - Regular  23.00  1,427,224  -  -  -  -  1,427,224 

Teachers - SPED  11.00  -  662,791  -  -  -  662,791 

Substitute Teachers  158,400  -  -  -  -  158,400 

Teaching Assistants  19.00  657,240  -  -  -  -  657,240 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL

 REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

 SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

 MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL 

CY Per Pupil Rate



VOICE Charter School
PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2015-2016  Assumptions

July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2016 DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable

Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10.

OTHER FUNDRAISING TOTAL

Total Revenue  8,741,175  1,251,289  373,624  -  -  10,366,088 

Total Expenses  8,566,207  878,519  -  -  921,362  10,366,088 

Net Income  174,968  372,770  373,624  -  (921,362)  0 

Actual Student Enrollment  508  94  - 

Total Paid Student Enrollment  508  94  602 

 PROGRAM SERVICES  SUPPORT SERVICES 

 OTHER  FUNDRAISING  TOTAL 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL

 REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

 SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

 MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL 

Specialty Teachers  10.00  634,495  -  -  -  -  634,495 

Aides  -  216,730  -  -  -  -  216,730 

Therapists & Counselors  3.00  249,718  -  -  -  -  249,718 

Other  -  179,250  -  -  -  179,250 

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL  66  3,523,057  662,791  -  -  -  4,185,848 

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS

Nurse  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Librarian  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Custodian  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Security  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Other  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS  96  4,723,625  662,791  -  -  528,820  5,915,235 

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS

Payroll Taxes  349,481  53,707  -  -  47,657  450,845 

Fringe / Employee Benefits  491,463  90,802  -  -  67,018  649,283 

Retirement / Pension  319,220  65,219  -  -  43,530  427,969 

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS  1,160,165  209,728  -  -  158,204  1,528,097 

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS  5,883,789  872,519  -  -  687,024  7,443,332 

CONTRACTED SERVICES

Accounting / Audit  -  -  -  -  66,987  66,987 

Legal  -  -  -  -  100,000  100,000 

Management Company Fee  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Nurse Services  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Food Service / School Lunch  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Payroll Services  -  -  -  -  20,200  20,200 

Special Ed Services  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Titlement Services (i.e. Title I)  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting  132,240  -  -  -  -  132,240 

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES  132,240  -  -  -  187,187  319,427 

SCHOOL OPERATIONS

Board Expenses  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials  121,980  -  -  -  -  121,980 

Special Ed Supplies & Materials  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Textbooks / Workbooks  190,183  -  -  -  -  190,183 

Supplies & Materials other  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Equipment / Furniture  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Telephone  18,400  -  -  -  -  18,400 

Technology  176,914  -  -  -  -  176,914 

Student Testing & Assessment  46,224  -  -  -  -  46,224 

Field Trips  16,900  -  -  -  -  16,900 

Transportation (student)  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Student Services - other  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Office Expense  12,137  -  -  -  47,151  59,288 

Staff Development  327,718  6,000  -  -  -  333,718 

Staff Recruitment  49,700  -  -  -  -  49,700 

Student Recruitment / Marketing  42,942  -  -  -  -  42,942 

School Meals / Lunch  2,000  -  -  -  -  2,000 

Travel (Staff)  1,200  -  -  -  -  1,200 

Fundraising  -  -  -  -  -  - 



VOICE Charter School
PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2015-2016  Assumptions

July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2016 DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable

Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 155. This will populate the data in row 10.

OTHER FUNDRAISING TOTAL

Total Revenue  8,741,175  1,251,289  373,624  -  -  10,366,088 

Total Expenses  8,566,207  878,519  -  -  921,362  10,366,088 

Net Income  174,968  372,770  373,624  -  (921,362)  0 

Actual Student Enrollment  508  94  - 

Total Paid Student Enrollment  508  94  602 

 PROGRAM SERVICES  SUPPORT SERVICES 

 OTHER  FUNDRAISING  TOTAL 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION

SPECIAL 
EDUCATION

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL

 REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

 SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

 MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL 

Other  84,012  -  -  -  -  84,012 

TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS  1,090,310  6,000  -  -  47,151  1,143,461 

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE

Insurance  42,728  -  -  -  -  42,728 

Janitorial  99,200  -  -  -  -  99,200 

Building and Land Rent / Lease  667,313  -  -  -  -  667,313 

Repairs & Maintenance  50,923  -  -  -  -  50,923 

Equipment / Furniture  -  -  -  -  - 

Security  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Utilities  57,700  -  -  -  -  57,700 

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE  917,864  -  -  -  -  917,864 

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION  163,535  -  -  -  -  163,535 

DISSOLUTION ESCROW & RESERVES / CONTIGENCY  378,469  -  -  -  -  378,469 

TOTAL EXPENSES  8,566,207  878,519  -  -  921,362  10,366,088 

NET INCOME  174,968  372,770  373,624  -  (921,362)  0 

ENROLLMENT - *School Districts Are Linked To Above Entries*

District of Location  508  94  602 

School District 2 (Enter Name)  - 

School District 3 (Enter Name)  - 

School District 4 (Enter Name)  - 

School District 5 (Enter Name)  - 

TOTAL ENROLLMENT  508  94  602 

REVENUE PER PUPIL  17,207  13,312  621 

EXPENSES PER PUPIL  16,863  9,346  - 

 REGULAR 
EDUCATION 

 SPECIAL 
EDUCATION 

 TOTAL 
ENROLLED 
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Audited	Financial	Statement	Checklist
Last	updated:	10/30/2015

Page	1

Charter	School	Name:

1.	Please	check	each	item	that	is	included	in	the	2014-15	Audited	Financial	Statement	submitted	for	your	charter	school.

Yes/No

Audited	Financial	Statements	(including	report	on	compliance	and	report
on	internal	control	over	financial	reporting)

Yes

Single	Audit	(if	applicable) No

CSP	Agreed	Upon	Procedures	(if	applicable) No

Management	Letter Yes

Report	on	Extracurricular	Student	Activity	Accounts	(if	applicable) No

Corrective	Action	Plans	for	any	Findings No

2.	Please	indicated	if	there	is	a	finding(s)	noted	in	any	of	the	following	sections	of	your	charter	school's	2014-15	Audited

Financial	Statement.

Yes/No

Report	on	Compliance No

Report	on	Internal	Control	over	Financial	Reporting No

Single	Audit No

CSP	Agreed	Upon	Procedures	Report No

Management	Letter No

Thank	you.
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Appendix	E:	Disclosure	of	Financial	Interest	Form
Created:	07/30/2015

Last	updated:	09/28/2015

Page	1

343000860932	VOICE	CS	OF	NEW	YORK

All	trustees	who	served	on	an	education	corporation	governing	one	or	more	charter	schools	during	the	2014-2015	school

year	must	complete	the	form	in	Appendix	E	(Disclosure	of	Financial	Interest	Form).	The	Disclosure	of	Financial	Interest

Forms	are	due	on	November	1,	2015.	A	link	to	a	safe	and	secure	form	that	each	Trustee	must	complete	by	the	November

1,	2015	dealine	will	be	provide	here	by	September	1,	2015	or	sooner.	

ALL	charter	schools	or	merged	education	corporations	must	complete	the	Board	of	Trustees	Membership	Table	within	the

online	portal	in	Appendix	F	(Board	of	Trustees	Membership	Table).	The	Board	of	Trustees	Membership	Table	must	be

submitted	by	August	1,	2015.

Regents-authorized	charter	schools	must	upload	a	complete	set	of	board	of	trustee	Meeting	Minutes	from	July	2014-June

2015	into	Appendix	G	(Board	Minutes).	Board	of	Trustee	Meeting	Minutes	must	be	submitted	by	August	1,	2015.

Yes,	each	member	of	the	school's	Board	of	Trustees	will	receive	a	link	to	the	Disclosure	of	Financial	Interest	Form.

Yes

Thank	you.
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Appendix	F:	BOT	Membership	Table
Last	updated:	07/30/2015

Page	1

343000860932	VOICE	CS	OF	NEW	YORK

1.	Current	Board	Member	Information

Trustee	Name Email	Address Committee
Affiliation(s)

Voting	Member?
(Y/N)

Area	of	Expertise,
and/or	Additional
Role	and	School
(parent,	staff
member,	etc.)

Number	of	Terms
Served	and
Length	of	Each
(Include	election
date	and	term
expiration)

1

2 Carmela	Collier Parent
Representative

No Parent 9/21/13-present

3 Randolph	Ford
Chair/Board
President Yes

Education,
Administrative
Leadership

2	full	terms
served;	currently
in	3rd	full	term
(6/9/08	-	6/15/11)
(6/15/11	-
6/11/14)	(6/11/14
-	6/17)

4 Jessica	Wilt Trustee/Member Yes
Art	Direction,
Management

Currently	in	1st	full
term	(6/13/13-
6/13/16)

5 Christina	Young Trustee/Member Yes Finance,	Law

1	full	term	served,
currently	in	2nd
full	term	(6/13/12	-
6/15)	(6/15	-	6/18)

6 Arthur	Stainman Trustee/Member Yes
Organizational
Leadership,
Finance

1	full	term	served,
currently	in	2nd
full	term	(6/16/10-
6/12/13)	(6/12/13-
6/16)

7 Robert	de	Luna Trustee/Member Yes Health/Medical

1	full	term	served,
currently	in	2nd
full	term	(6/16/10-
6/12/13)	(6/12/13-
6/16)

8 Michael	Karp Trustee/Member Yes Organizational
Management

1	full	term	served,
currently	in	2nd
full	term	(6/13/12	-
6/15)	(6/15	-	6/18)

9 Richard	Grassey Trustee/Member Yes Finance

1	full	term	served,
currently	in	2nd
full	term	(6/13/12	-
6/15)	(6/15	-	6/18)
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10 Christopher	Doyle Trustee/Member Yes Law,	Finance

2	full	terms
served;	currently
in	3rd	full	term
(6/9/08	-	6/15/11)
(6/15/11	-
6/11/14)	(6/11/14
-	6/17)

11 Marc	Cohen Trustee/Member Yes Finance	&
Enrollment

2	full	terms
served,	currently
in	3rd	full	term
(6/16/09-6/13/12)
(6/13/12-6/15)
(6/13/15	-	6/18)

12 Loraine	Enlow Other Pending

13 John	Yarmick Other Pending

14 Lorraine	Cecere Trustee/Member Yes
Administrative
Leadership

1	full	term	served,
currently	in	2nd
full	term	(6/16/10-
6/12/13)	(6/12/13-
6/16)

15

16

17

18

19

20

2.	Total	Number	of	Members	Joining	Board	during	the	2014-15	school	year

2

3.	Total	Number	of	Members	Departing	the	Board	during	the	2014-15	school	year

4

4.	According	to	the	School's	by-laws,	what	is	the	maximum	number	of	trustees	that	may	comprise	the	governing	board?

15

5.	How	many	times	did	the	Board	meet	during	the	2014-15	school	year?

11

6.	How	many	times	will	the	Board	meet	during	the	2015-16	school	year?

11
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Thank	you.



VOICE Charter School  Appendix H 
 

 Annual Report 2014-2015  1 

Enrollment and Retention Targets 
 
In 2014-15, the school made a good faith effort to attract and retain a greater enrollment 
of students with disabilities, English language learners, and students who are eligible 
applicants for the free and reduced price lunch program.  The following list summarizes 
the actions taken. 

 
Students with Special Needs 

 Direct mail advertising that mentions special needs 
 School website that mentions special needs 
 Other advertising (e.g. community newspapers, fliers) that mentions 

special needs 
 Outreach to specialized feeder schools and programs 

 

English Language Learners 
 Direct mail advertising in languages other than English 
 Other advertising (e.g. radio, TV, flyer) in languages other than English 
 Outreach by multi-lingual staff 
 Outreach to a diverse array of immigrant community/ies 
 Outreach to specialized feeder schools and programs 
 Advertising and school materials are translated as needed 
 Distributing applications to ELL families at VOICE and encouraging them 

to give them out to other families they might know outside of VOICE to 
get them to apply for admission. 

 Distribution to immigrant advocacy groups in district. 
 All sessions had at least one Spanish speaking individual present and 

office staff is bilingual. School is able to access translators of languages 
other than Spanish when necessary. 

 
Students Eligible for Free and Reduced Lunch Programs 

 Meal program was covered at school open house, on application and 
during tours 

 Support is offered to assist families in completing all necessary 
paperwork to ensure eligible students participate in the lunch program 

 Recruitment occurred throughout neighborhoods surrounding the school  
and in the local district 

 
Going forward in 2015-16, the school will continue to utilize additional measures. 

 
 All school brochures, mailings and application will mention that the 

school accommodates students with disabilities, English language 
learners and participates in the free and reduced lunch program 

 With notice, translators will be made available for families at school 
events, such as parent-teacher conferences  

 We will investigate if social media resources can reach those 
communities. 
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Appendix	I:	Teacher	and	Administrator	Attrition
Last	updated:	07/30/2015

Report	changes	in	teacher	and	administrator	staffing.

Page	1

Charter	School	Name:	343000860932	VOICE	CS	OF	NEW	YORK

Instructions	for	completing	the	Teacher	and	Administrator	Attrition	Tables

ALL	charter	schools	should	provide,	for	teachers	and	administrators	only,	the	full	time	equivalent	(FTE)	of	staff	on	June

30,	2014,	the	FTE	for	added	staff	from	July	1,	2014	through	June	30,	2015,	and	the	FTE	for	any	departed	staff	from	July

1,	2014	through	June	30,	2015	using	the	two	tables	provided.	

2013-14	Teacher	Attrition	Table

FTE	Teachers	on	June	30,	2014 FTE	Teachers	Additions	7/1/14	–
6/30/15

FTE	Teacher	Departures	7/1/14	–
6/30/15

35 14 9

2013-14	Administrator	Position	Attrition	Table

FTE	Administrator	Positions	On
6/30/2014

FTE	Administrator	Additions
7/1/14	–	6/30/15

FTE	Administrator	Departures
7/1/14	–	6/30/15

3 0 0

Thank	you
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Appendix	J:	Uncertified	Teachers
Last	updated:	07/30/2015

"thirty	per	centum	or	5	teachers,	whichever	is	less"	
To	comply	with	NYS	Education	Law	Section	2854(3)(a-1),	please	report	the	(FTE)	count	of	uncertified	and	certified	teaching
staff	as	of	the	last	day	of	school	for	the	2014-15	school	year.

Page	1

Charter	School	Name:	343000860932	VOICE	CS	OF	NEW	YORK

Note	Definition	of	FTE:

Full-time	equivalent	employees	equal	the	number	of	employees	on	full-time	schedules	plus	the	number	of	employees	on	part-

time	schedules	converted	to	a	full-time	basis.	The	number	of	full-time	equivalent	employees	in	each	industry	is	the	product	of

the	total	number	of	employees	and	the	ratio	of	average	weekly	hours	per	employee	for	all	employees	to	average	weekly	hours

per	employee	on	full-time	schedules.	An	industry’s	full-time	equivalent	employment	will	be	less	than	the	number	of	its

employees	on	full-	and	part-time	schedules,	unless	it	has	no	part-time	employees	(U.S.	Commerce--Bureau	of	Economic

Analysis	at:	http://www.bea.gov/faq/index.cfm?faq_id=368#sthash.8Rbj89kq.dpuf)

How	many	UNCERTIFIED	Full-Time	Equivalent	Teachers	were	employed	in	the	charter	school	as	of	last	day	of	school	in

2014-15?

For	each	applicable	category	(i-iv),	input	the	relevant	full	time	equivalent	(FTE)	count	of	teachers.	

FTE	-	(June	30,	2015)

(i)	uncertified	teachers	with	at	least	three	years	of	elementary,	middle
or	secondary	classroom	teaching	experience

0

(ii)	individuals	who	are	tenured	or	tenure	track	college	faculty 0

(iii)	individuals	with	two	years	satisfactory	experience	through	Teach	for
America

0

(iv)	individuals	who	possess	exceptional	business,	professional,	artistic,
athletic,	or	military	experience

3

FTE	count	of	uncertified	teachers	who	do	not	fit	into	any	of	the	four
statutory	categories

0

Total 3.0

How	many	CERTIFIED	Full-Time	Equivalent	Teachers	were	employed	in	the	charter	school	as	of	the	last	day	of	school	in

2014-15?

37

Thank	you.
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VOICE Charter School 
 

Mission 
 

The mission of VOICE Charter School of NY is to create a safe and healthy learning 

environment that will nurture, motivate, and challenge all of our children to achieve the 

highest level of academic excellence and to develop into mindful, responsible, 

contributing participants in their education, their community, and the diverse society in 

which we live. 

 

Key Design Elements 
 
At VOICE staff and leadership believe that all students are capable of performing at high 

levels; and that adults are responsible for cultivating the right conditions and employing 

effective strategies to ensure that each student finds success. VOICE provides rigorous 

instruction and practice in all subjects, including the arts, to equip students with the habits 

and skills necessary to enter competitive high schools and eventually pursue high-level 

work in the area of their choice. Despite limited resources in our area, we believe in offering 

a pedagogy of choice rather than one of poverty. 

 

VOICE implements a rigorous, Common Core-aligned curriculum, utilizing Teachers 

College and EngageNY, to ensure that students are prepared to reach mastery in ELA and 

math. A spiraling curriculum in all subject areas allows students to build upon and develop 

skills and strategies at each level of instruction.    

 

Unique to VOICE is arts-infused model in which students take 5-10 arts/music classes per 

week.   Rather than treating the arts as enrichment, we see these disciplines as necessary in 

exploring a full spectrum of modes of thinking, individual practice, group dynamics, and 

the world’s cultural heritage. As such the arts programs at VOICE are taught with the same 

level of rigor, assessment, and differentiation as the core subjects. 

 

We are a Professional Learning Community. VOICE's organizational culture is one that 

privileges collaboration, team decision-making and peer leadership among staff. It is the 

responsibility of the Board and Principal to provide the necessary supports for this type of 

community to flourish: open communication, access to resources, professional 

development, opportunities for upward mobility, and a safe, joyful, student-oriented 

environment.  

 

A defining feature of our school is not only to engage in constant dialogue about our school 

values, formally and informally, among school staff, students, and parents.  Regular 

professional development sessions and staff meetings are dedicated to teaching and 

learning school culture.  School values concepts are integrated across subject areas and 

referenced often as touchstones of our school's community.  
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I. SCHOOL INFORMATION AND COVER PAGE
Created Saturday, July 12, 2014
Updated Tuesday, August 19, 2014

Page 1

1. SCHOOL NAME

(Select School name from dropdown menu; BEDS # appears first)

343000860932 VOICE CS OF NEW YORK

2. CHARTER AUTHORIZER

NYCDOE-Authorized Charter School

3. DISTRICT / CSD OF LOCATION

NYC CSD 30

4. SCHOOL INFORMATION
PRIMARY ADDRESS PHONE NUMBER FAX NUMBER EMAIL ADDRESS

36-24 12th St
Long Island City, NY, 11106

718-361-1694 646-537-1703

4a. PHONE CONTACT NUMBER FOR AFTER HOURS EMERGENCIES
Contact Name Franklin Headley

Title Principal

Emergency Phone Number (###-###-####)

5. SCHOOL WEB ADDRESS (URL)

www.voicecharterschool.org

6. DATE OF INITIAL CHARTER

2008-01-01 00:00:00

7. DATE FIRST OPENED FOR INSTRUCTION

2008-08-01 00:00:00

8. TOTAL NUMBER OF STUDENTS ENROLLED IN 2013-14 (as reported on BEDS Day)

(as reported on BEDS Day)

http://www.voicecharterschool.org
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556

9. GRADES SERVED IN SCHOOL YEAR 2013-14

Check all that apply

•  K

•  1

•  2

•  3

•  4

•  5

•  6

10. DOES THE SCHOOL CONTRACT WITH A CHARTER OR EDUCATIONAL
MANAGEMENT ORGANIZATION?
 

Yes/No Name of CMO/EMO

No
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11. FACILITIES

Will the School maintain or operate multiple sites?

Yes, 2 sites

12. SCHOOL SITES

Please list the sites where the school will operate in 2014-15.

Physical Address Phone
Number

District/C
SD

Grades
Served at Site

School at Full
Capacity at Site

Facilities
Agreement

Site 1 (same as
primary site)

36-24 12th Street
Long Island City, NY
11106

718-361-16
94

CSD 30 2,4,5,6 No Rent/Lease

Site 2 37-15 13th Street
Long Island City, NY
11101

718-786-62
13

CSD 30 K, 1, 3 Yes DOE space

12a. Please provide the contact information for Site 1 (same as the primary site).
Name Work Phone Alternate Phone Email Address

School Leader Franklin Headley

Operational Leader Patrick Ford

12b. Please provide the contact information for Site 2.
Name Work Phone Alternate Phone Email Address

School Leader Franklin Headley

Operational Leader Patrick Ford

Compliance Contact Patrick Ford

13. Are the School sites co-located?

Yes

13a. Please list the terms of your current co-location.
Date School will
leave current
co-location

Is school working
with NYCDOE to
expand into current
space?

If so, list
year
expansion
will occur.

Is school working
with NYCDOE to
move to separate
space?

If so, list the
proposed space and
year planned for
move

School at
Full
Capacity at
Site

Site 2 Lower Campus,
Share PS 111 Q -
no plans to leave

No No Yes
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14. Were there any revisions to the school’s charter during the 2013-2014 school year? (Please
include both those that required authorizer approval and those that did not require authorizer
approval).

Yes

15. Summary of Charter Revisions
Category (Select
Best Description)

Specific Revision (150 word limit) Date Approved by
BOT (if
applicable)

Date Approved by
Authorizer (if
applicable)

1 Change in
discipline policy

Revision of Discipline Code to comply with
provisions in the Dignity for All Students Act
(DASA)

6/19/2013 2/10/2014

2 Change in design or
educational
program

Change in assessment tools used for First and
Second Grades, removing Terra Nova testing for
internally created assessments that better align
with Common Core curriculum changes 

6/19/2013 2/10/2014

16. Our signatures below attest that all of the information contained herein is truthful and
accurate and that this charter school is in compliance with all aspects of its charter, and with all
pertinent Federal, State, and local laws, regulations, and rules. We understand that if any
information in any part of this report is found to have been deliberately misrepresented, that will
constitute grounds for the revocation of our charter. Check YES if you agree and use the mouse
on your PC or the stylist on your mobile device to sign your name).

•  Yes

Signature, Head of Charter School

Signature, President of the Board of Trustees

Thank you.



Page 1

Appendix A: Progress Toward Goals
Created Tuesday, July 29, 2014
Updated Saturday, November 01, 2014
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Charter School Name: 343000860932 VOICE CS OF NEW YORK

1. NEW YORK STATE REPORT CARD

Provide a direct URL or web link to the most recent New York State School Report Card for the
charter school (See https://reportcards.nysed.gov/).

(Charter schools completing year one will not yet have a School Report Card or link to one. Please type "URL is not available" in the
space provided).

http://data.nysed.gov/profile.php?instid=800000061089

2. APPENDIX A: PROGRESS TOWARD CHARTER GOALS 

2a. ACADEMIC STUDENT PERFORMANCE GOALS

If the results are not available by August 1st, please list the goals and explain this in the “progress toward goal attainment” column.
This task will reopen for the school to update and finalize by the November 1, 2014 due date.  

2013-14 Progress Toward Attainment of Academic Goals
Academic Student Performance
Goal

Measure
Used to
Evaluate
Progress

2013-2014 Progress Toward
Attainment

If Not Met, Describe Efforts to
be Taken

Academic
Goal 1

Beginning in 2014, VOICE will
achieve C or greater on the
Overall and Progress sections of
the Progress Report in all years
of the charter term.

NYCDOE
Progress
Report

Results Pending

Academic
Goal 2

Beginning in 2014, VOICE will
achieve C or greater in
Environment Section of the
Progress Report in all years of
the charter term.

NYCDOE
Progress
Report

Results Pending

Academic
Goal 3

Each year, 75 percent of third
through eighth graders will
perform at or above Level 3 on
the New York State ELA
examination.

NYS ELA
Assessment

VOICE did not achieve this
measure.

Percent at levels 3 & 4

Grade All / 2 Yr Cohort
3 42% / 48%
4 38% / 44%
5 32% / 31%
6 45% / 41%
All 39% / 41%

This year VOICE is focusing on
the development of a more
robust ELA Skills block to bring
together the components of
balanced literacy instruction to
ensure our students have a
variety of learning opportunities
with different kinds of text. We
have launched a passion reading
initiative where students can
find books on a topic of their

https://reportcards.nysed.gov/)
http://data.nysed.gov/profile.php?instid=800000061089
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choice to spend time reading
about. We have expanded our
coaching capacity for teachers
by developing a teacher
leadership pipeline that has
increased our coaching capacity
by 50%. In addition we have
refined our coaching model to
have more specific targets for
improvement. 

Academic
Goal 4

Beginning in 2011-2012, each
grade-level cohort will reduce
by one-half the gap between the
percent at or above Level 3 on
the previous year's State ELA
exam and 75 percent at or above
Level 3 on the current year's
State ELA exam. If a
grade-level cohort exceeds 75
percent at or above Level 3 in
the previous year, that cohort is
expected to show at least an
increase in the current year.

NYS ELA
Assessment

VOICE did not achieve this
measure.

Percent at levels 3 & 4

2014 2013 / 2014
Grade
4 35% / 44%
5 26% / 31%
6 29% / 41%
All 30% / 41%

Each grade level cohort made
gains from 2013 to 2014. For
example, 35% of the 2013 grade
3 students achieved a level of 3
& 4. As 4th grade scholars, 44%
scored at 3 and 4.

Please refer to the above ELA
strategies for the 2014-15 year.

Academic
Goal 5

Beginning in 2010-2011, the
percent of all tested students
who are enrolled in at least their
second year and performing at
or above Level 3 on the State
ELA exam will be greater than
that of all students in the same
tested grades in local school
district #30.

NYS ELA
Assessment

VOICE did achieve this
measure.

Percent at levels 3 & 4

Grade VOICE / District 30
3 48% / 34%
4 44% / 34%
5 31% / 30%
6 41% / 28%
All 41% / 31%

Academic
Goal 6

Each year, the percent of
students performing at or above
Level 3 on the State ELA exam
in each tested grade will place
the school in the top quartile of
all similar schools.

NYCDOE
Progress
Report

Results Pending

Academic
Goal 7

Each year, 75 percent of third
through eighth graders will
perform at or above Level 3 on
the New York State
Mathematics examination.

NYS
Assessment

VOICE did not achieve this
measure.

Percent at levels 3 & 4

Grade All / 2 Yr Cohort
3 80% / 82%
4 60% / 64%
5 59% / 59%
6 81% / 84%
All 70% / 72%

This year we are expanding our
approach to problem solving to
grades K-7 that uses a
cognitively guided approach to
build student's understanding
around mathematics. We have
provided our teachers with
additional professional
development to understand the
process through which students
build ideas. We are continuing
to build a standards based
homegrown curriculum by
heavily drawing on Go Math
and EngageNY resources.

Academic
Goal 8

Beginning in 2011-2012, each 
grade-level cohort will reduce 
by one-half the gap between the

NYS
Assessment

VOICE made great strides in 
math this year, but each grade 
level cohort did not improve by
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percent at or above Level 3 on
the previous year's State Math
exam and 75 percent at or above
Level 3 on the current year's
State Math exam. If a
grade-level cohort exceeds 75
percent at or above Level 3 in
the previous year, that cohort is
expected to show at least an
increase in the current year.

halfway to 75%. 
 
Percent at levels 3 & 4 
 
2014 2013 / 2014 
Grade 
4 67% / 64% 
5 39% / 59% 
6 29% / 84% 
All 45% / 72%

2a1. Do have more academic goals to add?

Yes

2013-14 Progress Toward Attainment of Academic Goals
Academic Student Performance Goal Measure

Used to
Evaluate
Progress

2013-2014 Progress Toward Attainment If Not Met,
Describe
Efforts to be
Taken

Academic
Goal 9

Beginning in 2010-2011, the percent of
all tested students who are enrolled in at
least their second year and performing
at or above Level 3 on the State Math
exam will be greater than that of all
students in the same tested grades in
local school district #30.

NYS Math
Assessment

VOICE did achieve this measure.

Percent at levels 3 & 4

Grade VOICE / District 30
3 82% / 42%
4 64% / 44%
5 59% / 41%
6 84% / 41%
All 72% / 42%

Academic
Goal 10

Each year, the percent of students
performing at or above Level 3 on the
State Math exam in each tested grade
will place the school in the top quartile
of all similar schools.

NYCDOE
Progress
Report

Results Pending

Academic
Goal 11

Beginning in 2011-2012 when our
student enrollment reaches 4th grade,
75 percent of fourth grade students who
are enrolled in at least their second year
will perform at or above Level 3 on the
New York State Science examination.

NYS Science
Assessment

VOICE achieved this measure.

90 percent of 4th grade students who
have been enrolled for two plus years
scored at levels 3 & 4 on the NYS
Science 4 exam in 2013-14.

Academic
Goal 12

Beginning in 2011-2012 when our
student enrollment reaches 4th grade,
students who are enrolled in at least
their second year and performing at or
above Level 3 on the State Science
exam will be greater than that of fourth
grade students in local school district
#30.

NYS Science
Assessment

District results unavailable at the time
of this report.

2a2. Do have more academic goals to add?

No
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2b. ORGANIZATIONAL GOALS

2013-14 Progress Toward Attainment of Organizational Goals
Organizational Goal Measure

Used to
Evaluate
Progress

2013-14 Progress Toward Attainment If Not Met,
Describe
Efforts to be
Taken

Org
Goal 1

Each year, the school will have a daily
student attendance rate of at least 95
percent.

School ATS
Records

VOICE achieved this objective.

The average attendance rate for the
2013-2014 was 95.1%.

Org
Goal 2

Each year, student enrollment will be
within 15% of full enrollment as defined
in the school's contract. This will be
maintained on an ongoing basis and
monitored bi-monthly.

Enrollment
Records

VOICE achieved this objective.

The planned enrollment for 2013-2014
was in the 500-550 range. The BEDS
Day count was 556.

Org
Goal 3

At least 95% of the students will
re-enroll at the school each year, not
including any who might leave due to
geographic reasons.

Enrollment
Records

VOICE achieved this measure.

Org
Goal 4

Beginning 2014, VOICE will achieve
80% satisfaction in the DOE
Environmental survey in all years of the
charter term.

NYCDOE
School
Survey

VOICE fell just short of achieving 80%
satisfaction from parents, teachers and
students. In just one category, Systems
for Improvement, 78% reported
satisfaction. Greater than 80% were
satisfied with Instructional Core and
School Culture.

Org
Goal 5

Each year, the school will comply with
all applicable laws, rules, regulations
and contract terms applicable to charter
schools including, but not limited to, the
New York Charter Schools Act, the New
York Freedom of Information Law, the
New York Open Meetings Law, the
federal Individuals with Disabilities
Education Act, and federal Family
Educational Rights and Privacy Act.

Board
Policies and
Meetings

VOICE achieved this objective.

2b.1 Do you have more organizational goals to add?

(No response)

2013-14 Progress Toward Attainment of Organizational Goals
Organizational Goal Measure Used

to Evaluate
Progress

2013-2014 Progress Toward
Attainment

If Not Met,
Describe
Efforts to be
Taken

Org
Goal 6

Per the 2010 amendment to the Charter 
Schools Act, the school shall 
demonstrate good faith efforts to attract,

School 
Programs, 
Policies &

VOICE achieved this objective. 
 
Please refer to Appendix H of this
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retain, and meet or exceeded enrollment
and retention targets as prescribed by
the Board of Regents through the State
Education of students with disabilities,
English language learners, and students
who are eligible applicants for the free
and reduced price lunch program.

Materials document for detailed information.

2c. FINANCIAL GOALS

2013-14 Progress Toward Attainment of Financial Goals
Financial Goals Measure Used to Evaluate

Progress
2013-2014 Progress Toward
Attainment

If Not Met,
Describe
Efforts to be
Taken

Financial
Goal 1

Upon completion of the school's
first year of operation and every
year thereafter, the school will
undergo an independent financial
audit that will result in an
unqualified opinion and no major
findings.

Independent Audit VOICE achieved this measure.

Financial
Goal 2

Each year, the school will operate
on a balanced budget and maintain
a stable cash flow.

The budget is reviewed
month to month by the
Finance Committee of the
Board of Trustees.

VOICE achieved this objective.

The school maintained a positive
operating and cash surplus
throughout the year and kept
within the limits of the budget of
operating expenses throughout the
school year.
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Appendix B: Total Expenditures and Administrative Expenditures
per Child
Created Thursday, July 31, 2014

Page 1

Charter School Name: 343000860932 VOICE CS OF NEW YORK

B. Financial Information 
This information is required of ALL charter schools. Provide the following measures of fiscal
performance of the charter school in Appendix B (Total Expenditures and Administrative
Expenditures Per Child):
 

1. Total Expenditures Per Child

To calculate ‘Total Expenditures per Child’ take total expenditures (from the unaudited 2013-14 Schedule of Functional Expenses) and
divide by the count of students you reported on of BEDS Day. (Integers Only. No dollar signs or commas).

1. Total Expenditures Per Child | Line 1: Total Expenditures 7166695

1. Total Expenditures Per Child | Line 2: BEDS Day Pupil Count 556

1. Total Expenditures Per Child | Line 3: Divide Line 1 by Line 2 12890

2. Administrative Expenditures per Child

To calculate ‘Administrative Expenditures per Child' take the relevant portion from the ‘personnel services cost’ row and the
‘management and general’ column (from the unaudited 2013-14 Schedule of Functional Expenses) and divide by the BEDS per pupil
count.  The relevant portion that must be included in this calculation is defined as follows:

Administrative Expenditures:  Administration and management of the charter school includes the activities and personnel of the offices
of the chief school officers, the treasurer, the finance or business offices, the purchasing unit, the employee personnel offices, the
records management offices, or a public information and services offices.  It also includes those administrative and management
services provided by other organizations or corporations on behalf of the charter school for which the charter school pays a fee or other
compensation.  
 
Please note the following:

Do not include the FTE of personnel dedicated to administration of the instructional programs.
Do not include Employee Benefit costs or expenditures in the above calculations. 
A template for the Schedule of Functional Expenses is provided on page 21 of the 2012 Annual Report Guidelines to assist schools
identify the categories of expenses needed to compute the two per pupil calculations. This template does not need to be completed
or submitted on August 1st as it will be submitted November 1st as part of the audited financial statements. Therefore schools should
use unaudited amounts for these per pupil calculations. (See the 2013-14 Annual Report Guidelines in "Resources" area of your portal
task page).

To calculate ‘Administrative Expenditures per Child' take the relevant portion from the
‘personnel services cost’ row and the ‘management and general’ column (from the 2013-14
Schedule of Functional Expenses) and divide by the count of students as of BEDS Day.
(Integers Only. No dollar signs or commas).
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To calculate ‘Administrative Expenditures per Child' take the relevant portion from the ‘personnel
services cost’ row and the ‘management and general’ column (from the 2013-14 Schedule of Functional
Expenses) and divide by the count of students as of BEDS Day. (Integers Only. No dollar signs or
commas). | Line 1: Relevant Personnel Services Cost (Row)

797839

To calculate ‘Administrative Expenditures per Child' take the relevant portion from the ‘personnel
services cost’ row and the ‘management and general’ column (from the 2013-14 Schedule of Functional
Expenses) and divide by the count of students as of BEDS Day. (Integers Only. No dollar signs or
commas). | Line 2: Management and General Cost (Column)

00

To calculate ‘Administrative Expenditures per Child' take the relevant portion from the ‘personnel
services cost’ row and the ‘management and general’ column (from the 2013-14 Schedule of Functional
Expenses) and divide by the count of students as of BEDS Day. (Integers Only. No dollar signs or
commas). | Line 3: Sum of Line 1 and Line 2

797839

To calculate ‘Administrative Expenditures per Child' take the relevant portion from the ‘personnel
services cost’ row and the ‘management and general’ column (from the 2013-14 Schedule of Functional
Expenses) and divide by the count of students as of BEDS Day. (Integers Only. No dollar signs or
commas). | Line 4: BEDS Day Pupil Count

556

To calculate ‘Administrative Expenditures per Child' take the relevant portion from the ‘personnel
services cost’ row and the ‘management and general’ column (from the 2013-14 Schedule of Functional
Expenses) and divide by the count of students as of BEDS Day. (Integers Only. No dollar signs or
commas). | Line 5: Divide Line 3 by the BEDS Day Pupil Count

1435

Thank you.
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CERTiilED PUBLIC ACCOUNTA,NTS AND ADVISORS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Trrustees
VOICE Charter Scfirool

Report on the Financial Sfafemenfs

We have audited the accompanying flnancial statements of VOICE Charter Schc
"school"), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 201
the related statemelnts of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Ma n age menf 's Respo n s i b i I ity for th e F i n an ci al Sfafemenfs

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these fl
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
states of America;this includes the design, implementation, and mainienance of
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements
free from material rnisstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Respon sibi I ity

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
audit' We conducterd our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally ar
in the United States of America and the standards Lpplicable to Rnantial
contained in Government Auditing Sfandards, issued by the Comptroller General
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perfoim the audit to
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of r
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the a
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the fi
statements, whether due to fraud or error. ln making those risk assessments, the
considers internal r:ontrol relevant to the School's preparation and fair presenti
the financial statenrents in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectivenGrrcumslances, DUI not lor tne purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectivene
the School's internal control. Accordingly we express no such opinion. An audit
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as wr

(the
and

then

ncial

Cits
the

rD of
r the
;s of
also
the

ll as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

we believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

An Indcpadent Mmber of BaLcr 15lly Intematiomt

NEwYoRK'f40hrkAvouesouth,3rdF,.on""*rolK,tffi, l: zt2s76t4o- Fzt2st6t,it,t lw.mhefcpacomYALHALU\.100 Cdmbus Avenus SuiE zOOE, Valhale Ny lO59S I T 9t,t 7,il 0SO F 9t,t 74t t03,t I w.mbafcp-com



Opinion

In our opinion, ther financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
respects, the financial position of VolcE charter school as of June 96,2014,
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accorda
accounting principles generally accepted in the United states of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative lnformation

We have previously audited VOICE Charter School's 2013 financial statements
expressed an unmodified opinion on those audited financial statements in our
dated october 22, 2013. In our opinion, the summarized comparative inf
presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013 is consistent. in all
respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

ln aecordance with Government Auditing Sfandards, we have also issued our r

dated October 20, 2014 on our consideration of the School's internal control
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial rr

and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion o
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integra
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing sfandards in
the school's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

{\$ft$ tffr$, LLL
New York, NY
October 20,2014

the
withr
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VOICE CHARTER SCHOOL

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30, 2014
(wrTH SUMMAR|ZED COMPARATTVE TNFORMATTON FOR JUNE 30,2013)

ASSETS

Cash

Cash - NYCDOE Set-aside
Grants and other receivables
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Property and equipment, net
Construction in progress

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued salaries and other payroll related expenses
Deferred rent

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
Net assets - unrestricted
Net assets - temporarily restricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

$ 1,646,746

70,000
170,519
449,397

1,459,788
334,794

$ 4,131,244

$ 87,915
1,025,447

906,940

2,020,302

2,010,942
100,000

2,110,942

$ 4,131,244

1,104,143
70,000

427,860
396,801

1,072,458

90,484
893,781

1,552,444
500

944

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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VOICE CHARTER SCHOOL

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2014

WTH SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash received from operating revenue
Other cash received
Cash paid to employees and suppliers

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTIING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property and equipment

NET CASH USED IN IINVESTING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH

CASH - BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH - END OF YEAR

Reconciliation of change in net assets to net cash provided by operating activities:

Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash

provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Loss on disposal of property and equipment

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Grants and other receivables
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued salaries and other payroll related expenses
Deferred rent
Security deposit

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

$ 8,548,668
120,498

(7,64s,51s)

1,023,651

(481,048)

(481,048)

542,603

1,104,143

$ 1,646,746

349,998

117,497_

257,341
(52,5e6)

(2,56e)
131,666
222,314

6,1915,326

1319,743

"287.781

\?47

328,108

776,035

$ 1,fl04,143

69,125
672

(n82,410)
(163,265)

\i47,124)
117,045

302,313
1

$ 1,023,651

-

947

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.



VOICE CHARTER SCHOOL
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NATURE OF THE ORGANIZATION

VOICE Charter School (the "School") aims to create a safe and healthy learning environment will nurture,
develop intomotivate, and challenger all of our children to achieve the highest level of academic excellence and

mindful, responsible, contributing participants in their education, their community, and the diverse in which
we live. The School incorporates music into a rigorous academic program. On January 1S,
Regents of the University of the State of New York granted the School a provisional charter valid
years and renewable upon expiration. The School was renewed for an additional 5 year period
2013for a period from July 1,2013 to June 30,2018.

Jarnuary 15,

on october 3, 2008, the school, as determined by the Internal Revenue service, was
income tax exemption under section 501(a) of the lnternal Revenue code ("lRC") as an

ther Board of
a term offive

Section 501(c)(3) of ther lRC. lt is also currently exempt under a similar provision under New Y State income
tax laws. The School has also been classified as an entity that is not a private foundation within meaning of
Section 509(a) of the lFlC and qualifies for deductible contributions as provided in section 1 1XA)(ii) of the

for Federal
derscribed in

Charter

. In fiscal

statement of

lRC. The School's prinnary sources of income are per pupil and other government funding.
School, located in Long lsland City, Queens, primarily educates children residing in District 30.

ln fiscaf year 2014, the ,School operated classes for students in grades kindergarten through sixth
year 2013, the School operated classes for students in grades kindergarten through fifth grade.

The New York City Department of Education ('NYCDOE) provides free lunches and
majority of the School's students.

2. SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIES

dinectly to a

Financial Statement Pnesentation

The School's financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in
accounting principles gernerally accepted in the United States of America ("U.S. GMP).

The classification of an organization's net assets and its support, revenues, and expenses is based on the
existence or absence ol'donor-imposed restrictions. lt requires that the amounts for each of the
net assets, permanentlly restricted, temporarily restricted, and unrestricted, be displayed in

rclasses of

financial position and that the amounts of change in each of those classes of net assets be
statement of activities.

Ina

These classes are defined as follows:

Permanently Restricted

Net assets resulting from contributions and other inflows of assets whose use by the School is ed by donor-
by actions ofimposed stipulations thart neither expire by passage of time nor can be fulfilled or otherwise

the School.

Temporarily Restricted

Net assets resulting frorn contributions and other inflows of assets whose use by the School are by donor-
imposed stipulations that either expire by passage of time or can be fulfilled and removed by actiorns of the
School pursuant to those stipulations. When such stipulations end or are fulfilled, such resltricted net
assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities.
restriction is fulfilled in the same period in which the contribution is received, the School reports
unrestricted.

However, if a
support as



$427,860 at June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The School has determined that no allovyance for
uncoflectible accounts is necessary as of June 30,2014 and 2013. Such estimate is based on S
assessments of the creditworthiness of its donors, the aged basis of its receivables, as well as
conditions and historical information.

economic

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from the state and local governments resulting from the School's charter status is based the number
of students enrolled and is recorded when services are performed in accordance with the charter

VOICE CHARTER SCHOOL

Nores ro FtNANctAL SrRruuerurs
Jurue 30. 2014

srcNrFtcANT AccoU htTtNc poLtctEs (coNTtNU ED)

Unrestricted

The part of net assets that is neither permanently nor temporarily restricted by donor-imposed

Cash

Included in cash is an escrow account of $70,000, which is held aside for contingency purposes
the NYCDOE.

Grants and Other Receivables

Grants and other receivables represent unconditional promises to give by donors. Grants and
that are expected to be collected within one year and recorded at net realizable value amounts

Revenue from federal, state and local government grants and contracts are recorded by
qualifying expenditures are incurred and billable. Funds received in advance for which qual
have not been incurred, if any, are reflected as refundable advances from state and local
the accompanying staternents of financial position.

Premises Provided by Government Authorities

The School does not record any in-kind contributions and related costs with respect to
space provided to it by the NYCDOE (see Note 8) as the premises are temporary in nature, is
space whereby afair value cannot be determined, and is industry practice.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Property and ec
depreciated in accordance with the straight-line method over their estimated useful
improvements are amortized over the shorter of the life of the asset or the life of the lease.
established a $5,000 threshold above which assets are capitalized. Property and equipment

expected future undiscounted cash flows is less than the carrying amount of the assets, the
impairment loss. No impairment losses were recognized for the year ended June 30,2014.

lations.

rerquired by

sr rereivables
$170,519 and

School when
expenditures

grants in

and shared
shared

are being
[.easehold

School has
wiith certain

government contract funds is recorded as expenses pursuant to the terms of the in which the
government funding source retains ownership of the property. Maintenance and repairs are
as incurred; major renewals and betterments are capitalized.

to e;puna"

lmpairment

The School reviews long-lived assets to determine whether there has been any permanent rwhenever
events or circumstances indicate the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. lf sum of the

recognizes an
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Deferred Rent

adjustment to future rents as a result of using the shaight-line method.

In accordance with U.S. GAAP, rent expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lif
including future escalations of rent, rather than in accordance with lease payments. Deferred rent

lease,
rts the

of llhe

Functional Allocation of Expenses

Expenses that can be directly identified with a specific program or supporting service are
Other expe_nses by funr:tion have been allocated among piogram anO'suppdrting service
upon benefits received.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S GMP requires management to
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosuie of contir

presented. As a result, the June 30, 2013 comparative information does not include sufficient detail to co,nstitute a
presentation in conformity with U.S. GAAP. Accordingly, such June 30, 2013 information be read in

liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
reporting period, Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Subsequent Events

The School has evaluated events through October 20, 2014, which is the date the financial
available to be issued.

Comparative Financial Information

The June 30, 2014 financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative
but not by net asset class. In addition, only certain of the notes to the financial statements for

conjunction with the School's financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2013, from which
information was derived.

lncome Taxes

The School follows the accounting standard for uncertainty in income taxes. The standard

The School files informational returns in the federal and New York State jurisdictions. With few
School is no longer subjiect to federal, state, or local income tax examinations by tax authorities
before 201't.

The School believes that it has appropriate support for the positions taken on its tax returns.
amounts ultimately paid, if any, upon resolution of the issues raised by the taxing authorities may
from the amounts accrued for each year. Management believes that its nonprofit status would be
examination.

Should there be interest on underpayments of income tax, the School would classifu it as 'lnterest
School would classify penalties in connection with underpayments of tax as 'Other Expense."

,estimates

assets and
during the

in total
30. 2013 are

summarized

a mtntmum

the
fiscal years

recognition threshold and measurement methodology that a tax position taken or expected to be in a tax
return is required to meet before being recognized in the financial statements. lt also
derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, disclosure and transition.

guidance for

the
materially

upon

'The
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Recent Accounting Pronouncement

f n May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued an accounting stanr
affects the revenue recognition of entities that enter into either (1) certain contracts to trinsfer
to customers or (2) certain contracts for the transfer of nonfinancial assets. The update indicates
recognize revenue in an amount that reflects the consideration the entity expects io be entiiled to

the update will have on its financial statements.

Reclassifications

The prior year statement of cash flows has been reclassified from the indirect method to the
current year financial statements. This reclassification had no effect on previously reported ct

PROPERTYAND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consist of the following as of June 30:

the goods or services transferred by the entity. The update is to be applied to the beginning
implementation or retrospectively and is effective for annual periods beginning ater Oece-mUer .

interim periods in annual periods beginning after December lb,zo'tg. faity apitication is pe
than annual reporting periods beginning afterDecember31,2016. rne Stn6J is currenity

update which
or servtces

entity should
exchange for

of the year of
5, 2017 and in

bul no earlier
the effect

method in the
in nett assets.

Estilmated

7 r/ears
311ears
311ears
311ears

of lease

andl $69,797,

the School.
June 30,

Furniture and fixtures
Musical instruments
Computers
Software
Leasehold improvements

Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization

$ 136,676 $ 108,910
6,610 6,610

74,842 38,415
26,401 18,530

1.471.513 1.029.850

1,716,042 1,2'11,215

e56.254\ (138,757)

s t_459.788 S 1.072.458

Depreciation and amortization expense for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 was $1 17
respectively.

CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

During the year ended June 30, 2012, the School undenrvent construction due to the expansion
The School operates on a work-order basis and has not entered into any contract. For the years (

2014 and 2013, construr:tion in progress was 9334,7g4 and $35g,573, respectively.

While the School is not r:ommitted to any construction contract, the total estimated cost of the
is approximately $1,200,000. At June 30, 20'14 and 2013, approximately 670/o and 49o/o,
project has been complerted.

10
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The School participates in the Teachers' Retirement System of the City of New york (,1RS" or
covers principals and teachers. Employees enrolled in tne ptan are required to contiibute 4.g
years and 1.85% thereafter through twenty-seven years. Employees become vested in the Sc
to the Plan after ten years of service. The School's contribution is a rate based on actuarial
methods and a percentaOg 

9f other participating TRS charter schools' contributions. Ourint tne'
30, 2014 and 2013, the School used a rate of 12% and 13.75o/o, respectively. The diffeience
percentages yielded accumulative.credits of approximately 946,000 anO gZ+,b00 for the years
?9l7gla 2013, respe<;tively, which were netted against the pension expense. For the fistaly,
30,2014 and 2013, the School incurred a pension expense of $319,1i3 and 9266,940, I
included in payroll taxes and employee benefits in the accompanying siatement of functional

Accounting standards require employers participating in multiemployer plans to provide detailed
qualitative disclosures for these plans. TRS, which is sponsored U! tnb City of New yort<, Ooe
expiration date on participating employers. The zone status is consistent wiin tne pension
for the Plan's year-end at June 30,2013, The zone status is based on information
Comprehensive Annuall Financial Report, which includes information from TRS' actuary and is
auditor. Among other factors, plans in the red zone are generally less than 65 percent funded, p
zone are less than 80 percent funded and plans in the green zone are at least 80 percent
report a rehabilitation plan. Information related to the Plan is comprised of the following:

PENSION PLAN

Pension Fund

Retircment System

Contributions

2014 2013

$318,133 $266,940

Plan"), which
for the first ten

contribution
and

ended June
the two

June 30,
ended June

, which is

and
not impose an

Act and is
in the TRS

by TRS'
in the yellow
TltS did not

much as their
maxrmum

of assets;
protect itself

governmental
funds for

2013

Employees may also participate in a Tax-Deferred Annuity ("TDA") program, which is de
pension plan. Employees may contribute as little as 1% of their salary to the TDA Program and
designated Maximum contribution Rate. This rate is based on their salary and the
contribution amount the lnternal Revenue Service (lRS) has established for that year.

In May 2014, the school adopted a affi(b) pension plan beginning fiscal year 2014-2015.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The School is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; thefts of, damage to, and
injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The School maintains commercial insurance to
from such risks.

The School entered into contractual relationships with certain governmentalfunding sources.
agencies may request return of funds as a result of noncompliance by the School, js well as r

the use of facilities. The accompanying financial statements make no provision for the possible
refund.

11
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CONCENTRATIONS

Financial instruments that potentially subject the School to concentrations of credit risk consist
deposits. Accounts are insured by the Federal Deposit lnsurance Corporation (FDIC) up to

The School received approximately 97% and 90% of its total revenue from per pupil funding
during the years ended June 30, 2O14 and 2013, respectively.

The School's grants and other receivables consist of two major grantors as of June gO, 2014.

The School's payables consist of four major vendors as of June 30,2014.

COMMITMENT AND CONTINGENCIES

In June 201 1, the Schrool entered into a Lease Agreement with The Roman Catholic Church
leasing the premises at 36-25 11th Street, Long lsland City, New York 11106. The lease term is fr
to June 30, 2031. Future minimum rental lease payments are as follows:

NYCDOE

S1t. Rita, for
July 1, 2011

560,000
5€i0,000
616,200
6:11,400
6417,185

New York
. T'here is no

June 30,

2015
2016
2017
2018
20't9
Thereafler

Rent expense forthe years ended June 30, 20'14 and 2013 was $672,686 and $669,335,
included in rent and utilities on the statement of functional expenses.

The School also shares space with P.S. 111 Jacob Blackwell located at 37-15 13th Street,
11101. The School occupies 8,971 square feet at this location, and shares another 7,828 square
lease or agreement in place for the shared space and no rent is charged to the School.

TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Temporarily restricted net assets are time restricted and consist of the following balances at June

2014
Time restricted:

CEI-PEA Grant
Total temporarily restricted net assets:

$ 100,000

$ 100,000

12
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CIRTIfIES PUSTIC ACCOUNTANTS AND ADVISORS

Accordance Wlth Government Auditinq Stanclards

To the Board of Trustees
VOICE Charter School

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govem ment Auditing t
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of VOICE
School (the "School"), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30,2014,
related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended,
related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 20,

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and perftrrming our audit of the financial statements, we considered the School,s
control over financial reporting ("internal control') to determine the audit procedures
appropriate in the cin:umstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on thefinancial sl
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School's internal
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the School's internal control.

A deficiency in intemal control exists when the design or operation of a control does allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A materiat weakness is a defici

the
the

combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility
material misstatement of the School's financial statements will not be prevented,'or detect
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of de
internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit
those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragra
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control tnat niight Oe
weaknesses or signifiicant deficiencies. Given these limitations during our audit, we did not idr
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,

,ora
that a
rd and
;ies, in
lion by

i0f

of this

weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Mafters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School's financial statements are
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do noi
such an opinion.

The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
be reported under Goyemment Auditing Standards.

An Indcprmdent Mmbet of Bale t Tilly lnftdational
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CERITIEO PUBLIC ACCOUFITANTS AND ADVI9OR9

October 20,2014

To the Audit Committee
VOICE Charter School

We have audited the financial statements of VOICE Charter School (the "School")
year ended June 30, 2014 and are prepared to issue our report thereon dated t
20, 2014. Professional standards require that we provide you with the
information related to our audit. This letter is divided into tw-o sections: 1)
communications from the auditors to those with audit oversight responsibilities
opportunities for strengthening internal controls or enhancing operating efficier

the

inld
I :2)

and

u

A.

our related recommendations.

REQUIRED COMMUNICATIONS

As stated in our engagement letter May 13, 2014, our responsibility, as der
professional standards, is to express an opinion about wheiher the
statements prepared by management with your oversight are fairly prese
material respects, in conformity with U.s. generally accepted accounting
our audit of the financial statements does not relieve you or management
responsibilities. our responsibility is to plan and perform the audit to
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that the financial statements are
material misstatement. As part of our audit, we considered the internal
volcE charter school. such considerations were solely for the pul
determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concern
internal control. we are responsible for communicating significant matters
the audit that are, in our professional judgment, relevant to your responl
overseeing the financial reporting process. However, we are not required to
procedures specifically to identifiT such matters.

B. Planned Scope and Timinq of the Audit:

we performedl the audit according to the planned scope and timing pre
communicated to you in our meeting about planning matters on July 29,2014.

C. Auditor Independence:

we affirm that MBAF cPAs, LLC is independent with respect to VolcE
School.

in all

your

such

rcf

rcf

of

llo

In
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D. Qualitative Aspects of Accountinq practices:

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accpolicies. In accordance with the terms of our 
"ng"g"r"ni'tatt"r, *" *itimanagement iabout the appropriateness of accounting policies and their

The significant accounting poiicies used by volcE ciarter school are r
Note 2 to the financiat statements. we noted no transactions entered into
::Pl^*r'ls,^t-1"-y-"11 fqr which. there is. a tack oi aunorrative suide

Allow-a4ce for Dou btful Accounts :
As of June 30, 2014, volcE charter school recorded grants and
receivables of $170,S19. Management concluded that no allowance for
accounts was necessary. Management calculated based on the a
the credit-worthiness of the school's donors, the aged baiii of the
as well as economic conditions and historical infoimation. Based on ourprocedures which included a discussion with the school leadership and a
of subsequent collections we concur with management's conclusion.

Pension Plan:

Ihq s,qlqo]".participates in the Teachers' Retirement system of the city
York ("TRS" or "The plan"), which covers principals ind teachers. Em
enrolfed in the Plan are required to contribute 4.g5o/o for the first ten yea
1.85o/o thereafter through twenty-seven years. Employees become vested
school's contribution to the plan after ten years of service. The sr
contribution is a rate based used on actuarial assumptions and methods
percentage of other participating TRS charter schools' contributions. Duri
years ended June 30, 2e14 and 2013, the school used a rate of 12
13.75%,. respectively. The difference between the two percentages
accumulative credits-o-f approximately $46,000 and 974,000 for the fearsJune 30, 2aM and 2019, respectively, which were neited against ihe
expense. For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, the
incurred a pension expense of $318,133 and 9266,g40, respectively, wh
included in payroll taxes and emproyee benefits in the accompanying
of functiona I expenses.

F.unctional Statement Allocation :

Management's estimate of the allocation of functional expenses is
identified. with the frogram or supporting service to whiclr they relate.
evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop thb
determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken

consensus. There afe no significant transactions that have been recognized
financial statements in a different period than when the transaction occurred.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements
management and are.based on management's knowledge and experienbepast and currelnt events and assumptions about future eienti. ceriain
estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the
:f:T:if 11_o 

ogcause of the possibility that future euenis affecting ihe;
significantly from those expected. The mbst sensitive estimates ate&id ih;
statements wene:

whole.

in

or
thetn
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the

other

audit
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Depreciation:
Management's estimate of depreciation is based on estimated useful
assets. we evaluated the estimated useful lives of assets in
generally accepted accounting principles in determining that it is
relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

The disclosures in the financial statements are neutral, consistent, and clear.
flnancial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their sior
to financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosure(s) affecting thj
statements werre:

The disclosure of Risk Management in Note 6 to the financial
describes various risks to which the School is exposed.

G. Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements:

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely missta
identified during the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate
the appropriate level of management. Management has corrected all
misstatements. we will identifu those adjustments proposed both correcte
uncorrected:

Proposed and Gorrected:

There were 8 audit adjustments (1 of which was a reclassiffing entry) that incr
net assets by approximately 9196,000. In the prior year, there were g
adjustments (ll of which were reclassiffing entries) thai increased net
approximately $202,000. The most significant adjustments were as follow:

1. To increase net assets by approximately $124,000 to adjust for over
payroll.

2. To increase net assets by approximately 967,000 to record prepaid exp
for surnmer school 2014 that had been incruded with fiscal yeai
expenses.

Proposed and Uncorrected:

There were no audit adjustments proposed and uncorrected during the fiscal

H. Audit Difficulties and Disaoreements with Manaqement:

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreemer
management as a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether
resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements
auditor's reporl,.

we are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course
audit.
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Manaqement Representations :

we have requested certain representations from management that are
the management representation letter dated october zo,-zol+.

In some cases, management may decide to consutt with other accountants
auditing and accounting matters, similar to obtaining a .second opinion" on
situations. lf a consultation involves application of'an accounting principle

:*:"JI kl.ll' :l"tem.ents ora deteimination of the tyd;i;;;t.iiJ'"[i,
may be expressed on those statements, our professibnal standards
consulting accountant to check with us to determine that tn" 

"onruft"nt 
frJ,

relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with
accountants.

K. Other Audit Findinqs or lssues:

we ge.nerally discuss a variety of matters, including the application ofprinciples and auditing standards, with managemenieach ve",. prior to retent
the school's au.rditors. However, these discusiions occurred in the normal
our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our
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OPPORTUNITIES FOR STRENGTHENING INTERNAL CONTROLS OR
OPERATING EFFICIENCY

Please note: Comments with an asterisk (*) was communicated in the prior fiscal

SllacittggLe a s el q ree meng
Through conversations with tfre Scnoot's Principal, we have been informed that a
written agreement between volcE charter school and the Department of
9:,:: ll"l. .:1i1._Y_9, I:gommend that Volc E charter schooi period icatry re<
risks of such a relationship.

*Federal Grants:
we understand that the schoolwas awarded various Federalgrants. \Mile
are a valuable source of revenue, the grants idrs a varuaore source ot revenue, tne grants impose very specific and stringent r,
requirements and compliance. In addition, where cumulative expenditures of
lT9,*::"-d,l?09400 lgr.fiscat year.2015 and $7b0,000 for ii".ri v."i ibi
beyond, an additional audit is perfolmed in accordance bMB circular R-tsg a
recommend that the school closely review its obligations under .ny p.gr.;, i.
federal funds are received.

We wish to thank management and personnel for their support and assistance
our audit' We would be pleased to further discuss the contents of this r.pott *itn
your convenience.

This information is intended solely for the use of the Audit committee, E
Trustees, and management of voice charter school and is not intended to
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Very truly yours,

T\$SF tftu, LLL
MBAF CPAs, LLC

the

lof
and



VOICE Charter School 
PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2014-2015  Assumptions

July 1, 2014 to June 30, 2015 DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable

Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 147. This will populate the data in row 9.

SPECIAL EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING TOTAL

Total Revenue  7,959,117  1,058,771  -  -  -  9,017,888 
Total Expenses Err:511 Err:511  -  - Err:511 Err:511

Net Income Err:511 Err:511  -  - Err:511 Err:511
Actual Student Enrollment  508  82  590 

Total Paid Student Enrollment  478  77  555 

 PROGRAM SERVICES  SUPPORT SERVICES 

 OTHER  FUNDRAISING  TOTAL 

REVENUE

REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES

Per Pupil Revenue

District of Location $13,777.00  7,640,724  1,011,324  -  -  -  8,652,048 

School District 2 (Enter Name)  -  -  -  -  -  - 

School District 3 (Enter Name)  -  -  -  -  -  - 

School District 4 (Enter Name)  -  -  -  -  -  - 

School District 5 (Enter Name)  -  -  -  -  -  - 

 7,640,724  1,011,324  -  -  -  8,652,048 

Special Education Revenue  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Grants

Stimulus  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Other  44,080  -  -  -  -  44,080 

Other State Revenue  -  -  -  -  -  - 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES  7,684,804  1,011,324  -  -  -  8,696,128 

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING

IDEA Special Needs  -  47,447  -  -  -  47,447 

Title I  211,474  -  -  -  -  211,474 

Title Funding - Other  37,182  -  -  -  -  37,182 

School Food Service (Free Lunch)  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Grants

Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Other  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Other Federal Revenue  -  -  -  -  -  - 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES  248,657  47,447  -  -  -  296,104 

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE

Contributions and Donations, Fundraising  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Erate Reimbursement  22,656  -  -  -  -  22,656 

Interest Income, Earnings on Investments,  3,000  -  -  -  -  3,000 

NYC-DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Developmt.)  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Food Service (Income from meals)  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Text Book  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Other Local Revenue  -  -  -  -  -  - 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES  25,656  -  -  -  -  25,656 

TOTAL REVENUE  7,959,117  1,058,771  -  -  -  9,017,888 

EXPENSES

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS  No. of Positions 
Executive Management  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Instructional Management  3.00 Err:511  -  -  - Err:511 Err:511

Deans, Directors & Coordinators  2.00 Err:520  -  -  -  - Err:520

CFO / Director of Finance  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Operation / Business Manager  2.00 Err:511  -  -  - Err:511 Err:511

Administrative Staff
Err:520 Err:511  -  -  - Err:520 Err:511

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF Err:520 Err:511  -  -  - Err:511 Err:511

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS

Teachers - Regular Err:510 Err:510  -  -  -  - Err:510

Teachers - SPED Err:520 Err:510 Err:511  -  -  - Err:510

Substitute Teachers  -  65,520  35,280  -  -  -  100,800 

Teaching Assistants  32.00 Err:511 Err:511  -  - Err:520 Err:511

Specialty Teachers  11.00  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Aides  -  209,098  -  -  -  -  209,098 

Therapists & Counselors  3.00 Err:520  -  -  -  - Err:520

Other Err:520  -  -  -  - Err:520

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL Err:510 Err:510 Err:511  -  - Err:520 Err:510

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS

Nurse  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Librarian  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Custodian  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Security  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Other  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS Err:520 Err:511 Err:511  -  - Err:511 Err:511

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS

Payroll Taxes Err:511 Err:520  -  - Err:511 Err:511

Fringe / Employee Benefits Err:511 Err:520  -  - Err:511 Err:511

Retirement / Pension Err:511 Err:520  -  - Err:511 Err:511

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS Err:511 Err:520  -  - Err:511 Err:511

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS Err:511 Err:511  -  - Err:511 Err:511

CONTRACTED SERVICES

Accounting / Audit  -  -  -  -  77,185  77,185 

Legal  -  -  -  -  70,000  70,000 

Management Company Fee  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Nurse Services  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Food Service / School Lunch  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Payroll Services  -  -  -  - Err:520 Err:520

Special Ed Services  -  -  -  -  - 

Titlement Services (i.e. Title I)  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting  95,104  -  -  -  -  95,104 

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES  95,104  -  -  - Err:520 Err:520

SCHOOL OPERATIONS

Board Expenses  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials Err:510  5,000  -  - Err:510

Special Ed Supplies & Materials  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Textbooks / Workbooks Err:520  -  -  -  - Err:520

Supplies & Materials other  6,300  -  -  -  -  6,300 

Equipment / Furniture  -  -  -  -  - 

Telephone  17,500  -  -  -  -  17,500 

Technology  81,546  -  -  -  -  81,546 

Student Testing & Assessment  46,224  -  -  -  -  46,224 

Field Trips  2,000  -  -  -  -  2,000 

Transportation (student)  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Student Services - other  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Office Expense  20,054  -  -  -  23,331  43,385 

Staff Development  335,524  3,850  -  -  -  339,374 

Staff Recruitment  54,710  -  -  -  -  54,710 

Student Recruitment / Marketing  21,486  -  -  -  -  21,486 

School Meals / Lunch  2,000  -  -  -  -  2,000 

Travel (Staff)  1,200  -  -  -  -  1,200 

Fundraising  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Other Err:520  -  -  -  - Err:520

TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS Err:510  8,850  -  -  23,331 Err:510

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE

Insurance  39,583  -  -  -  -  39,583 

Janitorial  81,000  -  -  -  -  81,000 

Building and Land Rent / Lease  547,313  -  -  -  -  547,313 

Repairs & Maintenance  46,898  -  -  -  -  46,898 

Equipment / Furniture  -  -  -  -  - 

Security  50,000  -  -  -  -  50,000 

Utilities  60,600  -  -  -  -  60,600 

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE  825,394  -  -  -  -  825,394 

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION Err:520  -  -  -  - Err:520

DISSOLUTION ESCROW & RESERVES / CONTIGENCY  349,428  -  -  -  -  349,428 

TOTAL EXPENSES Err:511 Err:511  -  - Err:511 Err:511

NET INCOME Err:511 Err:511  -  - Err:511 Err:511

REGULAR 
EDUCATION

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL

 REGULAR 
EDUCATION  SPECIAL EDUCATION 

 MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL 

CY Per Pupil Rate

CSI:
This line should show how many students a school 
intends to be paid for.  

For Example:
If a school plans on enrollment of 100 students however 
is budgeting to only receive 95% of those students, 95 
should be entered in in this row.  CSI:

Enter in the Per Pupil Rate (PPR) for the 
Current Year (CY). 

For Example:
If this application is being submitted in 
2009-10 for a school opening in 2011-
12, enter in the 2009-10 PPR for that 
district in the cells below.  If a higher 
PPR is assumed indicate that % 
increase in the ASSUMPTION column. 
Refer to the State Aid website for the 
tuition rates. 
https://stateaid.nysed.gov/charter/

CSI:
Sample titles that fall under this line:
 - Head of School
 - Superintendant
 - School Leader
 - Executive Director
 - CEO

CSI:
Sample titles that fall under this line:
 - Principal
 - Vice-Principal
 - Assistant Principal
 - Chief Academic Officer

CSI:
Sample titles that fall under this line:
Director, Deans, Coordinators of:
 - Curriculum
 - Instruction
 - Faculty
 - Students
 - Assessment
 - Student Affairs
 - Student Achievement
 - Development

CSI:
Sample titles that fall under this line:
 - Secretary
 - Receptionist
 - Attendance Clerk
 - Office Manager

CSI:
Sample titles that fall under this line:
Content/Subject Area Teachers:
   - ELA
   - Math
   - Social Studies
   - ScienceCSI:
Sample titles that fall under this line:
 - ESL
 - Reading
 - Math and/or Literacy Specialists
 - Art
 - PE
 - Music
 - Foreign Languages
 - Photography
 - Ceramics

CSI:
Sample titles that fall under this line:
 - Speech Therapists
 - Social Workers

CSI:
Cafeteria
Other

CSI:
Health and Dental
Social Security
Medicare
Unemployment
Other

CSI:
Janitorial
Consultants
 - Assessment
 - Technology
 - Other
Security
Background Screening
Public Relations

CSI:
Development
Conferences

CSI:
Curriculum

CSI:
Instructional
Non-Instructional
Athletic
Music
Office Equipment
* Includes the Purchase or Lease 
of  any of the above

CSI:
Hardware
Software
Internet
Wiring
OtherCSI:
Uniforms
Special Events
CSI:
Printing
Postage
Copying
All Other

CSI:
Conferences

CSI:
Interest 
Bank Charges
Bad Debt
Misc. Fees (i.e. Licensing)
Dues & Membership
All Other 
(If any questions contact CSI)

CSI:
Facility
EquipmentCSI:
Facility Related
* Includes the Purchase or Lease 
of  any equipment
CSI:
Electric
Gas
Other

CSI:
$75,000 should be set aside for Dissolution and it can be 
spread out over the first THREE years if the school chooses.  
If spread out each year should minimally be $25k.  

A note can be added under assumptions describing the 
breakout.



VOICE Charter School 
PROJECTED BUDGET FOR 2014-2015  Assumptions

July 1, 2014 to June 30, 2015 DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please note assumptions when applicable

Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 147. This will populate the data in row 9.

SPECIAL EDUCATION OTHER FUNDRAISING TOTAL

Total Revenue  7,959,117  1,058,771  -  -  -  9,017,888 
Total Expenses Err:511 Err:511  -  - Err:511 Err:511

Net Income Err:511 Err:511  -  - Err:511 Err:511
Actual Student Enrollment  508  82  590 

Total Paid Student Enrollment  478  77  555 

 PROGRAM SERVICES  SUPPORT SERVICES 

 OTHER  FUNDRAISING  TOTAL 

REGULAR 
EDUCATION

MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL

 REGULAR 
EDUCATION  SPECIAL EDUCATION 

 MANAGEMENT & 
GENERAL 

CSI:
This line should show how many students a school 
intends to be paid for.  

For Example:
If a school plans on enrollment of 100 students however 
is budgeting to only receive 95% of those students, 95 
should be entered in in this row.  CSI:

Enter in the Per Pupil Rate (PPR) for the 
Current Year (CY). 

For Example:
If this application is being submitted in 
2009-10 for a school opening in 2011-
12, enter in the 2009-10 PPR for that 
district in the cells below.  If a higher 
PPR is assumed indicate that % 
increase in the ASSUMPTION column. 
Refer to the State Aid website for the 
tuition rates. 
https://stateaid.nysed.gov/charter/

ENROLLMENT - *School Districts Are Linked To Above Entries*  TOTAL ENROLLED 

District of Location  508  82  590 

School District 2 (Enter Name)  - 

School District 3 (Enter Name)  - 

School District 4 (Enter Name)  - 
School District 5 (Enter Name)  - 

TOTAL ENROLLMENT  508  82  590 

REVENUE PER PUPIL  15,668  12,912  - 

EXPENSES PER PUPIL Err:511 Err:511  - 

 REGULAR 
EDUCATION  SPECIAL EDUCATION 

CSI:
$75,000 should be set aside for Dissolution and it can be 
spread out over the first THREE years if the school chooses.  
If spread out each year should minimally be $25k.  

A note can be added under assumptions describing the 
breakout.
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Audited Financial Statement Checklist
Created Thursday, October 30, 2014

Page 1

Charter School Name: 

1. Please check each item that is included in the 2013-14 Audited Financial Statement submitted
for your charter school.

Yes/No

Audited Financial Statements (including report on compliance and report on internal control over
financial reporting)

Yes

Single Audit (if applicable) Not Applicable

CSP Agreed Upon Procedures (if applicable) Not Applicable

Management Letter Yes

Report on Extracurricular Student Activity Accounts (if applicable) No

Corrective Action Plans for any Findings No

2. Please indicated if there is a finding(s) noted in any of the following sections of your charter
school's 2013-14 Audited Financial Statement.

Yes/No

Report on Compliance No

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting No

Single Audit No

CSP Agreed Upon Procedures Report No

Management Letter No

Thank you.
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Appendix E: Disclosure of Financial Interest Form
Created Wednesday, July 16, 2014

Page 1

343000860932 VOICE CS OF NEW YORK

An Appendix E: Disclosure of Financial Interest Form must be completed for each active
Trustee who served on the charter school's Board of Trustees during the 2013-14 school
year. Trustees are at times difficult to track down in the summer months. Trustees may complete
and submit at their leisure (but before the deadline) their individual form at:

http://fluidsurveys.com/surveys/vickie-smith/appendix-e-trustee-disclosure-form/. Trustees may
download and/or email their forms to you upon completion.

Trustees who are technologically advanced may complete the survey using their smartphones or
other mobile devices by downloading the this bar code link to the
surveyhttps://fluidsurveys.com/account/surveys/540612/publish/qrcode/. (Make sure you have
the bar code application reader on your phone).

If a Trustee is unable to complete the form by the deadline (i.e, out of the country), the school is
responsible for submitting the information required on the form for that individual trustee.  

Just send the links via email today to your Trustees requesting that they each complete their
form as soon as possible.
Thank you.

Yes, each member of the school's Board of Trustees has received a link to the Disclosure of
Financial Interest Form.

Yes

Thank you.

http://fluidsurveys.com/surveys/vickie-smith/appendix-e-trustee-disclosure-form/
https://fluidsurveys.com/account/surveys/540612/publish/qrcode/
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Appendix F: BOT Membership Table
Created Wednesday, July 16, 2014
Updated Tuesday, July 29, 2014

Page 1

343000860932 VOICE CS OF NEW YORK

1. Current Board Member Information
Full Name
of Individual
Trustees

Position on
Board
(Officer or
Rep).

Voting
Member

Area of
Expertise &/or
Additional Role

Terms Served & Length (include date
of election and expiration)

Committee
affiliations

1 Carmela
Collier

Member
Ex-Officio

No Parent 9/21/13-present

2 Randolph
Ford

Vice
Chair/Vice
President

Yes Education,
Administrative
Leadership

2 full terms served; currently in 3rd
full term
6/9/08 - 6/15/11
6/15/11 - 6/11/14
6/11/14 - 6/17

Academic,
Accountability

3 Jessica Wilt Member Yes Art Direction,
Management

Currently in 1st full term
6/13/13-6/13/16

Academic,
Accountability

4 Christina
Young

Member Yes Finance, Law Currently in 1st full term
6/13/12-6/13/15

5 Arthur
Stainman

Member Yes Organizational
Leadership,
Finance

1 full term served, currently in 2nd full
term
6/16/10-6/12/13
6/12/13-6/16

Chairman of
Audit
Committee

6 Robert de
Luna

Member Yes Health/Medical 1 full term served, currently in 2nd full
term

6/16/10-6/12/13
6/12/13-6/16

Nomination
Committee

7 Michael
Karp

Member Yes Organizational
Management

Currently in 1st full term
6/13/12-6/15

Academic
Accountability

8 Richard
Bayles

Chair/Preside
nt

Yes Finance 2 full terms served; currently in 3rd
full term
6/9/08 - 6/15/11
6/15/11 - 6/11/14
6/11/14 - 6/17

Finance
Committee

9 Richard
Grassey

Member Yes Finance Currently in 1st full term
6/13/12 -6/15

Finance
Committee

10 Christopher
Doyle

Secretary Yes Law, Finance 2 full terms served; currently in 3rd
full term
6/9/08 - 6/15/11
6/15/11 - 6/11/14
6/11/14 - 6/17

Academic,
Accountability

11 Kevin Bean Member Yes Administration Currently in 1st full term
6/14/14 – 6/17



Page 2

12 Gretchen
Pusch

Member Yes Music,
Education

1 full term served, currently in 2nd full
term
6/16/10-6/12/13
6/12/13-6/16

13 Marc Cohen Member Yes Finance,
Enrollment

1 full term served, currently in 2nd full
term
6/16/09-6/13/12
6/13/12-6/15

Nomination
Committee,
Audit
Committee

14 Michael
Kirkbride

Treasurer Yes Budgeting and
Development

2 full terms served; currently in 3rd
full term
6/9/08 - 6/15/11
6/15/11 - 6/11/14
6/11/14 - 6/17

Finance
Committee
Chair

15 Lorraine
Cecere

Member Yes Administrative
Leadership

1 full term served, currently in 2nd full
term
6/16/10-6/12/13
6/12/13-6/16

Academic,
Acountability

2. Total Number of Members Joining Board during the 2013-14 school year

1

3. Total Number of Members Departing the Board during the 2013-14 school year

1

4. According to the School's by-laws, what is the maximum number of trustees that may
comprise the governing board?

15

5. How many times did the Board meet during the 2013-14 school year?

11

6. How many times will the Board meet during the 2014-15 school year?

11

Thank you.



VOICE Charter School 
 

 Annual Report 2013-2014  1 

Enrollment and Retention Targets 

a. In 2013-14, the school made a good faith effort to attract and retain a 
greater enrollment of students with disabilities, English language learners, 
and students who are eligible applicants for the free and reduced price 
lunch program.  The following list summarizes the actions taken. 
 
Students with Special Needs 

 Direct mail advertising that mentions special needs 
 School website that mentions special needs 
 Other advertising (e.g. community newspapers, fliers) that mentions 

special needs 
 Outreach to specialized feeder schools and programs 

 

English Language Learners 
 Direct mail advertising in languages other than English 
 Other advertising (e.g. radio, TV, flyer) in languages other than English 
 Outreach by multi-lingual staff 
 Outreach to immigrant community/ies 
 Outreach to specialized feeder schools and programs 
 Advertising and school materials are translated as needed 
 Distributing applications to ELL families at VOICE and encouraging them 

to give them out to other families they might know outside of VOICE to 
get them to apply for admission. 

 Distribution to immigrant advocacy groups in district. 
 All sessions had at least one Spanish speaking individual present and 

office staff is bilingual. 

 
Students Eligible for Free and Reduced Lunch Programs 

 Meal program was covered at school open house, on application and 
during tours 

 Support is offered to assist families in completing all necessary 
paperwork to ensure eligible students participate in the lunch program 

 Recruitment occurred throughout neighborhoods surrounding the school  
and in the local district 

 
Going forward in 2014-15, the school plans to utilize additional measures. 
 

 All school brochures, mailings and application will mention that the 
school accommodates students with disabilities, English language 
learners and participates in the free and reduced lunch program 

 With notice, translators will be made available for families at school 
events, such as parent-teacher conferences  
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Appendix I: Teacher and Administrator Attrition
Created Thursday, July 31, 2014

Page 1

Charter School Name: 343000860932 VOICE CS OF NEW YORK

Instructions for completing the Teacher and Administrator Attrition Tables
ALL charter schools should provide, for teachers and administrators only, the full time
equivalent (FTE) of staff on June 30, 2013, the FTE for added staff from July 1, 2013 through
June 30, 2014, and the FTE for any departed staff from July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014
using the two tables provided. 

2013-14 Teacher Attrition Table
FTE Teachers on June 30,
2013

FTE Teachers Additions 7/1/13 –
6/30/14

FTE Teacher Departures 7/1/13 –
6/30/14

26 13 9

2013-14 Administrator Position Attrition Table
FTE Administrator Positions On
6/30/2013

FTE Administrator Additions 7/1/13
– 6/30/14

FTE Administrator Departures
7/1/13 – 6/30/14

3 0 0

Thank you
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Appendix J: Uncertified Teachers
Created Tuesday, July 29, 2014

Page 1

Charter School Name: 343000860932 VOICE CS OF NEW YORK

Note Definition of FTE:
Full-time equivalent employees equal the number of employees on full-time schedules plus the
number of employees on part-time schedules converted to a full-time basis. The number of
full-time equivalent employees in each industry is the product of the total number of employees
and the ratio of average weekly hours per employee for all employees to average weekly hours
per employee on full-time schedules. An industry’s full-time equivalent employment will be less
than the number of its employees on full- and part-time schedules, unless it has no part-time
employees (U.S. Commerce--Bureau of Economic Analysis at:
http://www.bea.gov/faq/index.cfm?faq_id=368#sthash.8Rbj89kq.dpuf)

How many UNCERTIFIED Full-Time Equivalent Teachers were employed in the charter school
as of last day of school in 2013-14?

For each applicable category (i-iv), input the relevant full time equivalent (FTE) count of teachers. 

FTE

(i) uncertified teachers with at least three years of elementary, middle or secondary classroom teaching
experience

0

(ii) tenured or tenure track college faculty 0

(iii) individuals with two years satisfactory experience through Teach for America 0

(iv) individuals who possess exceptional business, professional, artistic, athletic, or military experience 2

Total FTE (Sum of all Uncertified Teaching Staff) 2

How many CERTIFIED Full-Time Equivalent Teachers were employed in the charter school as
of the last day of school in 2013-14?

33

Thank you.

http://www.bea.gov/faq/index.cfm?faq_id=368#sthash.8Rbj89kq.dpuf)




Page 1

Required Form: 2014-15 Appendix E - Trustee Disclosure of Financial
Interest Form
Created Friday, October 02, 2015
Updated Friday, October 30, 2015
https://nysed.fluidsurveys.com/account/surveys/537586/responses/export//s/Regents-Appendix-E-BOT-Form/dfc604b06d0752f2b4d460dc5f1f3de780129379/

Page 1

Please open the link to this form using Google Chrome as your browser. Doing so will allow
you to input your signature on page 2 of the form. Thank you.

1. TRUSTEE NAME
First Name Last Name

Trustee Name Robert de Luna

2. *Your Home Address:
2. *Your Home Address: | Street Address

2. *Your Home Address: | City/State

2. *Your Home Address: | Zip

3. *Your Business Address
3. *Your Business Address | Street Address

3. *Your Business Address | City/State

3. *Your Business Address | Zip

4. *Daytime Phone Number:

5. *E-mail Address:

6. I am a Trustee of a parent education corporation listed below which governs one or more
charter schools.

No, I am not.

7. Select the name of the education corporation that operates a single charter school.

VOICE CS OF NEW YORK (NYC CHANCELLOR) 343000860932

8. Select all positions you have held on the Board:



Page 2

(check all that apply)
•  Secretary

9. Are you a trustee and also an employee of the school?

No



Page 3

Page 2

10. Are you a trustee and an employee or agent of the management company or institutional
partner of the charter school?

No

11. Have you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in
your house had an interest in or engaged in a transaction with the charter school during the time
you have served on the board, and in the six-month period prior to such service? 

No

12. Are you a member, director, officer or employee of an organization formally partnered with
a school that is doing business with the charter school and in which such entity, during your
tenure as a trustee, you and/or your immediate family member or person living in your house
had a financial interest or relationship?

No

Signature of Trustee 

Thank you.



Page 1

Required Form: 2014-15 Appendix E - Trustee Disclosure of Financial
Interest Form
Created Monday, October 05, 2015
Updated Tuesday, October 06, 2015
https://nysed.fluidsurveys.com/account/surveys/537586/responses/export//s/Regents-Appendix-E-BOT-Form/d59fc92e03d715f63be5341e9052f2a3f1c3c67e/

Page 1

Please open the link to this form using Google Chrome as your browser. Doing so will allow
you to input your signature on page 2 of the form. Thank you.

1. TRUSTEE NAME
First Name Last Name

Trustee Name Carmela Collier

2. *Your Home Address:
2. *Your Home Address: | Street Address

2. *Your Home Address: | City/State

2. *Your Home Address: | Zip

3. *Your Business Address
3. *Your Business Address | Street Address

3. *Your Business Address | City/State

3. *Your Business Address | Zip

4. *Daytime Phone Number:

5. *E-mail Address:

6. I am a Trustee of a parent education corporation listed below which governs one or more
charter schools.

No, I am not.

7. Select the name of the education corporation that operates a single charter school.

VOICE CS OF NEW YORK (NYC CHANCELLOR) 343000860932

8. Select all positions you have held on the Board:
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(check all that apply)
•  Parent Representative

9. Are you a trustee and also an employee of the school?

No



Page 3

Page 2

10. Are you a trustee and an employee or agent of the management company or institutional
partner of the charter school?

No

11. Have you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in
your house had an interest in or engaged in a transaction with the charter school during the time
you have served on the board, and in the six-month period prior to such service? 

No

12. Are you a member, director, officer or employee of an organization formally partnered with
a school that is doing business with the charter school and in which such entity, during your
tenure as a trustee, you and/or your immediate family member or person living in your house
had a financial interest or relationship?

No

Signature of Trustee 

Thank you.



Page 1

Required Form: 2014-15 Appendix E - Trustee Disclosure of Financial
Interest Form
Created Friday, October 09, 2015
Updated Monday, October 26, 2015
https://nysed.fluidsurveys.com/account/surveys/537586/responses/export//s/Regents-Appendix-E-BOT-Form/24a6407cba1ad111a5ebe57ae46ea06a0706b175/

Page 1

Please open the link to this form using Google Chrome as your browser. Doing so will allow
you to input your signature on page 2 of the form. Thank you.

1. TRUSTEE NAME
First Name Last Name

Trustee Name Casey Lamb

2. *Your Home Address:
2. *Your Home Address: | Street Address

2. *Your Home Address: | City/State

2. *Your Home Address: | Zip

3. *Your Business Address
3. *Your Business Address | Street Address

3. *Your Business Address | City/State

3. *Your Business Address | Zip

4. *Daytime Phone Number:

5. *E-mail Address:

6. I am a Trustee of a parent education corporation listed below which governs one or more
charter schools.

No, I am not.

7. Select the name of the education corporation that operates a single charter school.

VOICE CS OF NEW YORK (NYC CHANCELLOR) 343000860932

8. Select all positions you have held on the Board:
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(check all that apply)
•  Other, please specify...: Board member

9. Are you a trustee and also an employee of the school?

No



Page 3

Page 2

10. Are you a trustee and an employee or agent of the management company or institutional
partner of the charter school?

No

11. Have you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in
your house had an interest in or engaged in a transaction with the charter school during the time
you have served on the board, and in the six-month period prior to such service? 

No

12. Are you a member, director, officer or employee of an organization formally partnered with
a school that is doing business with the charter school and in which such entity, during your
tenure as a trustee, you and/or your immediate family member or person living in your house
had a financial interest or relationship?

No

Signature of Trustee 

Thank you.



Page 1

Required Form: 2014-15 Appendix E - Trustee Disclosure of Financial
Interest Form
Created Friday, October 09, 2015
Updated Friday, October 30, 2015
https://nysed.fluidsurveys.com/account/surveys/537586/responses/export//s/Regents-Appendix-E-BOT-Form/651622f0dc5f417d19b3bdcf9a96d0c777bbfd60/

Page 1

Please open the link to this form using Google Chrome as your browser. Doing so will allow
you to input your signature on page 2 of the form. Thank you.

1. TRUSTEE NAME
First Name Last Name

Trustee Name Loraine Enlow

2. *Your Home Address:
2. *Your Home Address: | Street Address

2. *Your Home Address: | City/State

2. *Your Home Address: | Zip

3. *Your Business Address
3. *Your Business Address | Street Address  

3. *Your Business Address | City/State

3. *Your Business Address | Zip

4. *Daytime Phone Number:

5. *E-mail Address:

6. I am a Trustee of a parent education corporation listed below which governs one or more
charter schools.

No, I am not.

7. Select the name of the education corporation that operates a single charter school.

VOICE CS OF NEW YORK (NYC CHANCELLOR) 343000860932

8. Select all positions you have held on the Board:
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(check all that apply)
•  Other, please specify...: board member early

9. Are you a trustee and also an employee of the school?

No



Page 3

Page 2

10. Are you a trustee and an employee or agent of the management company or institutional
partner of the charter school?

No

11. Have you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in
your house had an interest in or engaged in a transaction with the charter school during the time
you have served on the board, and in the six-month period prior to such service? 

No

12. Are you a member, director, officer or employee of an organization formally partnered with
a school that is doing business with the charter school and in which such entity, during your
tenure as a trustee, you and/or your immediate family member or person living in your house
had a financial interest or relationship?

No

Signature of Trustee 

Thank you.



Page 1

Required Form: 2014-15 Appendix E - Trustee Disclosure of Financial
Interest Form
Created Friday, October 09, 2015
Updated Monday, October 26, 2015
https://nysed.fluidsurveys.com/account/surveys/537586/responses/export//s/Regents-Appendix-E-BOT-Form/230eda1860fd22ea141648a1b445cb4593c40583/

Page 1

Please open the link to this form using Google Chrome as your browser. Doing so will allow
you to input your signature on page 2 of the form. Thank you.

1. TRUSTEE NAME
First Name Last Name

Trustee Name John Yarmick

2. *Your Home Address:
2. *Your Home Address: | Street Address

2. *Your Home Address: | City/State

2. *Your Home Address: | Zip

3. *Your Business Address
3. *Your Business Address | Street Address

3. *Your Business Address | City/State

3. *Your Business Address | Zip

4. *Daytime Phone Number:

5. *E-mail Address:

6. I am a Trustee of a parent education corporation listed below which governs one or more
charter schools.

No, I am not.

7. Select the name of the education corporation that operates a single charter school.

VOICE CS OF NEW YORK (NYC CHANCELLOR) 343000860932

8. Select all positions you have held on the Board:
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(check all that apply)
•  Other, please specify...: Trustee

9. Are you a trustee and also an employee of the school?

No



Page 3

Page 2

10. Are you a trustee and an employee or agent of the management company or institutional
partner of the charter school?

No

11. Have you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in
your house had an interest in or engaged in a transaction with the charter school during the time
you have served on the board, and in the six-month period prior to such service? 

No

12. Are you a member, director, officer or employee of an organization formally partnered with
a school that is doing business with the charter school and in which such entity, during your
tenure as a trustee, you and/or your immediate family member or person living in your house
had a financial interest or relationship?

No

Signature of Trustee 

Thank you.



Page 1

Required Form: 2014-15 Appendix E - Trustee Disclosure of Financial
Interest Form
Created Friday, October 09, 2015
Updated Monday, October 26, 2015
https://nysed.fluidsurveys.com/account/surveys/537586/responses/export//s/Regents-Appendix-E-BOT-Form/050e8b6bc2b58174d92301c9b2109908123a1dbe/

Page 1

Please open the link to this form using Google Chrome as your browser. Doing so will allow
you to input your signature on page 2 of the form. Thank you.

1. TRUSTEE NAME
First Name Last Name

Trustee Name Christina Young

2. *Your Home Address:
2. *Your Home Address: | Street Address

2. *Your Home Address: | City/State

2. *Your Home Address: | Zip

3. *Your Business Address
3. *Your Business Address | Street Address

3. *Your Business Address | City/State

3. *Your Business Address | Zip

4. *Daytime Phone Number:

5. *E-mail Address:

6. I am a Trustee of a parent education corporation listed below which governs one or more
charter schools.

No, I am not.

7. Select the name of the education corporation that operates a single charter school.

VOICE CS OF NEW YORK (NYC CHANCELLOR) 343000860932

8. Select all positions you have held on the Board:
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(check all that apply)

(No response)

9. Are you a trustee and also an employee of the school?

No



Page 3

Page 2

10. Are you a trustee and an employee or agent of the management company or institutional
partner of the charter school?

No

11. Have you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in
your house had an interest in or engaged in a transaction with the charter school during the time
you have served on the board, and in the six-month period prior to such service? 

No

12. Are you a member, director, officer or employee of an organization formally partnered with
a school that is doing business with the charter school and in which such entity, during your
tenure as a trustee, you and/or your immediate family member or person living in your house
had a financial interest or relationship?

No

Signature of Trustee 

Thank you.



Page 1

Required Form: 2014-15 Appendix E - Trustee Disclosure of Financial
Interest Form
Created Friday, October 09, 2015
Updated Monday, October 26, 2015
https://nysed.fluidsurveys.com/account/surveys/537586/responses/export//s/Regents-Appendix-E-BOT-Form/6120365d7745d2541b3215c63271758eefb0b6a7/

Page 1

Please open the link to this form using Google Chrome as your browser. Doing so will allow
you to input your signature on page 2 of the form. Thank you.

1. TRUSTEE NAME
First Name Last Name

Trustee Name Jessica Wilt

2. *Your Home Address:
2. *Your Home Address: | Street Address

2. *Your Home Address: | City/State

2. *Your Home Address: | Zip

3. *Your Business Address
3. *Your Business Address | Street Address  

3. *Your Business Address | City/State

3. *Your Business Address | Zip

4. *Daytime Phone Number:

5. *E-mail Address:

6. I am a Trustee of a parent education corporation listed below which governs one or more
charter schools.

No, I am not.

7. Select the name of the education corporation that operates a single charter school.

VOICE CS OF NEW YORK (NYC CHANCELLOR) 343000860932

8. Select all positions you have held on the Board:
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(check all that apply)

(No response)

9. Are you a trustee and also an employee of the school?

No



Page 3

Page 2

10. Are you a trustee and an employee or agent of the management company or institutional
partner of the charter school?

No

11. Have you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in
your house had an interest in or engaged in a transaction with the charter school during the time
you have served on the board, and in the six-month period prior to such service? 

No

12. Are you a member, director, officer or employee of an organization formally partnered with
a school that is doing business with the charter school and in which such entity, during your
tenure as a trustee, you and/or your immediate family member or person living in your house
had a financial interest or relationship?

No

Signature of Trustee 

Thank you.



Page 1

Required Form: 2014-15 Appendix E - Trustee Disclosure of Financial
Interest Form
Created Friday, October 09, 2015
Updated Friday, October 30, 2015
https://nysed.fluidsurveys.com/account/surveys/537586/responses/export//s/Regents-Appendix-E-BOT-Form/d51eac2203c01a72505d135ab47a8f60b902783f/

Page 1

Please open the link to this form using Google Chrome as your browser. Doing so will allow
you to input your signature on page 2 of the form. Thank you.

1. TRUSTEE NAME
First Name Last Name

Trustee Name Lorraine Cecere

2. *Your Home Address:
2. *Your Home Address: | Street Address

2. *Your Home Address: | City/State

2. *Your Home Address: | Zip

3. *Your Business Address
3. *Your Business Address | Street Address

3. *Your Business Address | City/State

3. *Your Business Address | Zip

4. *Daytime Phone Number:

5. *E-mail Address:

6. I am a Trustee of a parent education corporation listed below which governs one or more
charter schools.

No, I am not.

7. Select the name of the education corporation that operates a single charter school.

VOICE CS OF NEW YORK (NYC CHANCELLOR) 343000860932

8. Select all positions you have held on the Board:



Page 2

(check all that apply)

(No response)

9. Are you a trustee and also an employee of the school?

No



Page 3

Page 2

10. Are you a trustee and an employee or agent of the management company or institutional
partner of the charter school?

No

11. Have you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in
your house had an interest in or engaged in a transaction with the charter school during the time
you have served on the board, and in the six-month period prior to such service? 

No

12. Are you a member, director, officer or employee of an organization formally partnered with
a school that is doing business with the charter school and in which such entity, during your
tenure as a trustee, you and/or your immediate family member or person living in your house
had a financial interest or relationship?

No

Signature of Trustee 

Thank you.



Page 1

Required Form: 2014-15 Appendix E - Trustee Disclosure of Financial
Interest Form
Created Friday, October 09, 2015
Updated Monday, October 26, 2015
https://nysed.fluidsurveys.com/account/surveys/537586/responses/export//s/Regents-Appendix-E-BOT-Form/5a85ee65b83f1584eb63845cd8f52ddb0ad3a9c4/

Page 1

Please open the link to this form using Google Chrome as your browser. Doing so will allow
you to input your signature on page 2 of the form. Thank you.

1. TRUSTEE NAME
First Name Last Name

Trustee Name Marc Cohen

2. *Your Home Address:
2. *Your Home Address: | Street Address

2. *Your Home Address: | City/State

2. *Your Home Address: | Zip

3. *Your Business Address
3. *Your Business Address | Street Address

3. *Your Business Address | City/State

3. *Your Business Address | Zip

4. *Daytime Phone Number:

5. *E-mail Address:

6. I am a Trustee of a parent education corporation listed below which governs one or more
charter schools.

No, I am not.

7. Select the name of the education corporation that operates a single charter school.

VOICE CS OF NEW YORK (NYC CHANCELLOR) 343000860932

8. Select all positions you have held on the Board:
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(check all that apply)
•  Vice Chair/Vice President

9. Are you a trustee and also an employee of the school?

No



Page 3

Page 2

10. Are you a trustee and an employee or agent of the management company or institutional
partner of the charter school?

No

11. Have you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in
your house had an interest in or engaged in a transaction with the charter school during the time
you have served on the board, and in the six-month period prior to such service? 

No

12. Are you a member, director, officer or employee of an organization formally partnered with
a school that is doing business with the charter school and in which such entity, during your
tenure as a trustee, you and/or your immediate family member or person living in your house
had a financial interest or relationship?

No

Signature of Trustee 

Thank you.



Page 1

Required Form: 2014-15 Appendix E - Trustee Disclosure of Financial
Interest Form
Created Friday, October 09, 2015
Updated Friday, October 30, 2015
https://nysed.fluidsurveys.com/account/surveys/537586/responses/export//s/Regents-Appendix-E-BOT-Form/e21e1058146541b8b2026d9c6f0c87876ee379b8/

Page 1

Please open the link to this form using Google Chrome as your browser. Doing so will allow
you to input your signature on page 2 of the form. Thank you.

1. TRUSTEE NAME
First Name Last Name

Trustee Name Chris Doyle

2. *Your Home Address:
2. *Your Home Address: | Street Address

2. *Your Home Address: | City/State

2. *Your Home Address: | Zip

3. *Your Business Address
3. *Your Business Address | Street Address  

3. *Your Business Address | City/State

3. *Your Business Address | Zip

4. *Daytime Phone Number:

5. *E-mail Address:

6. I am a Trustee of a parent education corporation listed below which governs one or more
charter schools.

No, I am not.

7. Select the name of the education corporation that operates a single charter school.

VOICE CS OF NEW YORK (NYC CHANCELLOR) 343000860932

8. Select all positions you have held on the Board:
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(check all that apply)

(No response)

9. Are you a trustee and also an employee of the school?

No



Page 3

Page 2

10. Are you a trustee and an employee or agent of the management company or institutional
partner of the charter school?

No

11. Have you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in
your house had an interest in or engaged in a transaction with the charter school during the time
you have served on the board, and in the six-month period prior to such service? 

No

12. Are you a member, director, officer or employee of an organization formally partnered with
a school that is doing business with the charter school and in which such entity, during your
tenure as a trustee, you and/or your immediate family member or person living in your house
had a financial interest or relationship?

(No response)

12a. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, partnership,
committee proprietorship, franchise holding company, joint stock company, business or real
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people doing business
with the school and in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or
your immediate family member or person living in your house had a financial interest or other
relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or employee of an organization formally
partnered with the school that is doing business with the school through a management or
services agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in the
organization as well as the relationship between such organization and the school. If there was
no financial interest, write None.

Organization
Conducting Business
with the School

Nature of
Business
Conducted

Approximate Value
of the Business
Conducted

Name of Trustee and/or
Immediate Family Member
with Interest

Steps Taken to
Avoid Conflict of
Interest

1

2

3

4

5

Signature of Trustee 

Thank you.



Page 1

Required Form: 2014-15 Appendix E - Trustee Disclosure of Financial
Interest Form
Created Friday, October 09, 2015
Updated Friday, October 30, 2015
https://nysed.fluidsurveys.com/account/surveys/537586/responses/export//s/Regents-Appendix-E-BOT-Form/7abc108ec6e099841f10ace81636b4a956ae8072/

Page 1

Please open the link to this form using Google Chrome as your browser. Doing so will allow
you to input your signature on page 2 of the form. Thank you.

1. TRUSTEE NAME
First Name Last Name

Trustee Name Richard Grassey

2. *Your Home Address:
2. *Your Home Address: | Street Address

2. *Your Home Address: | City/State

2. *Your Home Address: | Zip

3. *Your Business Address
3. *Your Business Address | Street Address

3. *Your Business Address | City/State

3. *Your Business Address | Zip

4. *Daytime Phone Number:

5. *E-mail Address:

6. I am a Trustee of a parent education corporation listed below which governs one or more
charter schools.

No, I am not.

7. Select the name of the education corporation that operates a single charter school.

VOICE CS OF NEW YORK (NYC CHANCELLOR) 343000860932

8. Select all positions you have held on the Board:



Page 2

(check all that apply)
•  Treasurer

9. Are you a trustee and also an employee of the school?

No



Page 3

Page 2

10. Are you a trustee and an employee or agent of the management company or institutional
partner of the charter school?

No

11. Have you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in
your house had an interest in or engaged in a transaction with the charter school during the time
you have served on the board, and in the six-month period prior to such service? 

No

12. Are you a member, director, officer or employee of an organization formally partnered with
a school that is doing business with the charter school and in which such entity, during your
tenure as a trustee, you and/or your immediate family member or person living in your house
had a financial interest or relationship?

No

Signature of Trustee 

Thank you.



Page 1

Required Form: 2014-15 Appendix E - Trustee Disclosure of Financial
Interest Form
Created Friday, October 09, 2015
Updated Friday, October 30, 2015
https://nysed.fluidsurveys.com/account/surveys/537586/responses/export//s/Regents-Appendix-E-BOT-Form/b6741c0ed421e2187563de68aa2285d79179f4ee/

Page 1

Please open the link to this form using Google Chrome as your browser. Doing so will allow
you to input your signature on page 2 of the form. Thank you.

1. TRUSTEE NAME
First Name Last Name

Trustee Name Michael Karp

2. *Your Home Address:
2. *Your Home Address: | Street Address

2. *Your Home Address: | City/State

2. *Your Home Address: | Zip

3. *Your Business Address
3. *Your Business Address | Street Address

3. *Your Business Address | City/State

3. *Your Business Address | Zip

4. *Daytime Phone Number:

5. *E-mail Address:

6. I am a Trustee of a parent education corporation listed below which governs one or more
charter schools.

No, I am not.

7. Select the name of the education corporation that operates a single charter school.

VOICE CS OF NEW YORK (NYC CHANCELLOR) 343000860932

8. Select all positions you have held on the Board:
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(check all that apply)

(No response)

9. Are you a trustee and also an employee of the school?

No



Page 3

Page 2

10. Are you a trustee and an employee or agent of the management company or institutional
partner of the charter school?

No

11. Have you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in
your house had an interest in or engaged in a transaction with the charter school during the time
you have served on the board, and in the six-month period prior to such service? 

No

12. Are you a member, director, officer or employee of an organization formally partnered with
a school that is doing business with the charter school and in which such entity, during your
tenure as a trustee, you and/or your immediate family member or person living in your house
had a financial interest or relationship?

No

Signature of Trustee 

Thank you.



Page 1

Required Form: 2014-15 Appendix E - Trustee Disclosure of Financial
Interest Form
Created Friday, October 09, 2015
Updated Wednesday, October 28, 2015
https://nysed.fluidsurveys.com/account/surveys/537586/responses/export//s/Regents-Appendix-E-BOT-Form/0cd753b7c08d2fcffe835e074a9cf03701f9127f/

Page 1

Please open the link to this form using Google Chrome as your browser. Doing so will allow
you to input your signature on page 2 of the form. Thank you.

1. TRUSTEE NAME
First Name Last Name

Trustee Name Randolph Ford

2. *Your Home Address:
2. *Your Home Address: | Street Address  

2. *Your Home Address: | City/State

2. *Your Home Address: | Zip

3. *Your Business Address
3. *Your Business Address | Street Address

3. *Your Business Address | City/State

3. *Your Business Address | Zip

4. *Daytime Phone Number:

5. *E-mail Address:

6. I am a Trustee of a parent education corporation listed below which governs one or more
charter schools.

No, I am not.

7. Select the name of the education corporation that operates a single charter school.

VOICE CS OF NEW YORK (NYC CHANCELLOR) 343000860932

8. Select all positions you have held on the Board:
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(check all that apply)
•  Chair/President
•  Vice Chair/Vice President

9. Are you a trustee and also an employee of the school?

No



Page 3

Page 2

10. Are you a trustee and an employee or agent of the management company or institutional
partner of the charter school?

No

11. Have you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in
your house had an interest in or engaged in a transaction with the charter school during the time
you have served on the board, and in the six-month period prior to such service? 

No

12. Are you a member, director, officer or employee of an organization formally partnered with
a school that is doing business with the charter school and in which such entity, during your
tenure as a trustee, you and/or your immediate family member or person living in your house
had a financial interest or relationship?

No

Signature of Trustee 

Thank you.
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Please open the link to this form using Google Chrome as your browser. Doing so will allow
you to input your signature on page 2 of the form. Thank you.

1. TRUSTEE NAME
First Name Last Name

Trustee Name Art Stainman

2. *Your Home Address:
2. *Your Home Address: | Street Address  

2. *Your Home Address: | City/State

2. *Your Home Address: | Zip

3. *Your Business Address
3. *Your Business Address | Street Address  

3. *Your Business Address | City/State

3. *Your Business Address | Zip

4. *Daytime Phone Number:

5. *E-mail Address:

6. I am a Trustee of a parent education corporation listed below which governs one or more
charter schools.

No, I am not.

7. Select the name of the education corporation that operates a single charter school.

VOICE CS OF NEW YORK (NYC CHANCELLOR) 343000860932

8. Select all positions you have held on the Board:



Page 2

(check all that apply)
•  Other, please specify...: trustee

9. Are you a trustee and also an employee of the school?

No
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10. Are you a trustee and an employee or agent of the management company or institutional
partner of the charter school?

No

11. Have you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with you in
your house had an interest in or engaged in a transaction with the charter school during the time
you have served on the board, and in the six-month period prior to such service? 

No

12. Are you a member, director, officer or employee of an organization formally partnered with
a school that is doing business with the charter school and in which such entity, during your
tenure as a trustee, you and/or your immediate family member or person living in your house
had a financial interest or relationship?

No

Signature of Trustee 

Thank you.
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